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Overview

Your Southern Water
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Average daily water supply, millions of litres per day 5293
People served, millions 24
Number of properties, millions 11
Number of waler treatment works 90
Number of service reservoirs 202
Length of water mains, kdometres 13,735
Number of metered properties 662,308
Leakage, millions of litres per day 81
Overali drinking water quabty, per cent 99 93
Average dailly wastewater recycled, milhons of litres per day 730
People served, milhons 45
Number of properties, millions 19
Number of wastewater treatment works 368
Number of pumping stations 2,360
Length of sewers, kilometres 39,000
Beaches meeting European water quality standards 82
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Finance | 201243 | 201112
Turnover £7787m £716 2m
Operating profit £3310m £271 6m
Profit on ordinary activities after tax £156 9m £79 9m
Average water and wastewater customer bill £427 £402

Chairman’s welcome

During the year, the company continued its transformation to ensure every business actwvity and decision
places the interests of our customers at its heart

To this end, the Board has played an integral role in the development to date of our 2015-20 Business Plan
as well as our 25-year Water Resources Management Plan and Strategic Statement Through these plans,
the Board and employees of Southern Water are committed to laying the foundations for a service that s
recognised as the best in the industry

Our operational performance also continued to strengthen in 2012-13, with iImprovements across the majority
of our water and wastewater services For example, we were delighted to once again record the lowest level
of leakage per property of all the main water and wastewater companies and the best safety performance in
our history In addition, we have now installed more than 215,000 water meters in our industry-leading
metering programme This 1S an important step in securing vital resources in the water-stressed South East

We continue to make significant investment in the South East to improve services for our customers and help |
safeguard the environment [n turn, this investment has provided jobs and helped support the regional :
economy during a particularly challenging time for famihies and commerce

It has been a year of change for the water industry as the sector embarks on a path of evolution, particularly
around the introduction of competition We have supported this evolution at a pace which delivers the best
outcomes for our customers, investors and the environment and we will continue to play our part to create a
confident and expert industry that defivers on its promises

Colin Hood
Chairman
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Your Board

The Board 1s responsibie for the overail strategic directon of the business It s made up of an independent
non-executive Charrman, two executive directors (the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer) and
six non-executive directors, four of whom are independent

The day-to-day operation of the company is overseen by the Executive Management Team, which comprises
the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Cfficer, Company Secretary and General Counsel and seven
functional directors None of these seven directors are members of the Board

The ultmate holding company of Southern Water Services (Southern Water) 1s Greensands Holdings
(Greensands), owned by a consortium of pension and infrastructure funds

Seven of our Board members and the Company Secretary are pictured above visiting one of our two Sussex
contact centres From left, they are

Surinder Toor (Non-executive Director)

David Golden (Semor Independent Non-executive Director)
Cheryl Black (Independent Non-executive Director)

Kevin Hall {Company Secretary and General Counsel)
Michael Carmedy (Chief Financial Officer)

Colin Hood (Chairman)

Robert Armstrong (Independent Non-executive Director)
Matthew Wnght (Chief Executive Officer)

Our two other Board members are

= Robert Jennings (Independent Non-executive Director)
= Paul Moy (Non-executive Director)

Find out more about the Board on pages 53 to 55
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CEQO’s summary

During 2012-13, we and our customers faced some of the driest weather on record followed by some of the
wettest We started 2012 in drought, with water restrictions in place in Sussex and Kent, and ended the year
mobilising tankers and pumps to deal with flooding caused by unprecedented levels of rain and groundwater

These extremes in weather have reinforced the importance of our plans to invest in our water and wastewater
networks to ensure they meet the challenges of our changing climate in the future and can continue to deliver
a reltable service for our customers

We are committed to keeping our customers’ needs at the heart of our operations and planning to ensure we
can deliver the service they expect from us in the 21% century

Despite the considerable challenges presented by the weather, we recorded some good results against our
targets These included continuing to supply dninking water to our customers that 1s among the best In
Europe, achieving 99 93 per cent in the overall quality measure used by the Drninking Water Inspectorate This
result was shghtly lower than the previous year due to some taste and odour issues In the Hastings area,
which we have taken steps to resolve

We maintained our industry-leading record on leakage at a time when we asked our customers to save water
during the drought in the early part of the year We continued to have the lowest level of leakage per property
of all the main water and wastewater companies, beating our target of 90 million litres a day by nine million
htres and delivering our best ever performance

Qur ongoing work to drive down leakage and help secure water resources for the future was supported by our
metering programme We have now installed more than 215,000 water meters in our five-year scheme to
meter 500,000 households In Kent, Sussex and Hampshire by 2015 Metering puts customers in control of
their water bills and nearly 60 per cent of those who moved to metered charges during the year saw their bills
go down Those whoese hills increased were offered tanffs to manage the transition to higher charges as well
as water and energy efficiency advice

Our main purpose as a company Is to deliver the service our customers expect, so we were disappointed with
some aspects of our performance during the year One way of measuring customer service in the water
industry 1s the Service Incentive Mechanmism (SIM), which 1s momitored by Ofwat We did not always provide
our customers with the service we would want to during the year We recerved high levels of contact, partly
because of drought and flooding, and were not always able to respond as effectively as we should have to
customers'’ quenes or complaints These have impacted on our SIM measure, but, more importantly, on our
customers

We are determined to do better and have launched a ‘turnaround plan’ to ensure we deliver a rapid
improvement in our performance The plan includes better traming, recruiting the nght staff for the job,
reviewing our processes and, above all, isteming more effectively to our customers We are pleased to report
that our SIM measures in 2013-14 to date are ahead of the unsatisfactory level we achieved In the
comparable period of 2012-13 We will focus on keeping our promises to our customers and helping them the
first time they contact us Restructures in our business during the year are helping us to work more efficiently
and achieve these goals The new structure provides greater clarty of roles and leadership as well as
improved processes

While water resources were stretched at the start of the year, the unprecedented amounts of rain that
followed filled our reservoirs and left groundwater levels at a record high Our supplies are in a strong position
for the next 12 months

The changing weather was a key factor as we updated our 25-year Water Resources Management Plan
(WRMP) to submit to Defra, the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affarrs The plan 1s updated
every five years and, this time, we used an innovative and more sophisticated approach Histoncally, plans
have been based on the most severe droughts expenenced in the past Our model allows us to plan for a
wider range of, and more senous, droughts which could happen in the future We talked extensively to our
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customers and stakeholders while developing the plan, which 1s open to public consultation between May and
August 2013, and we would very much like to hear your views via our dedicated website at
www.swhaveyoursay.co.uk

Future planning was a feature of the year We also updated our Strategic Statemment, which sets out our
customers’ prionties for theirr water and wastewater services in the next 25 years, and we laid the foundations
for our five-year Business Plan, which will inform our regulator, Ofwat, as it sets prnice imits for our customers
for 2015-20

Our ambition 1s to be recognised as the UK's leading water company The best, most successful companies
across the world are those that put their customers at the heart of therr business and incorporating our
customers' views Into our planning 1$ critical Extensive research with customers and stakeholders has helped
us to develop six outcomes to deliver in the years ahead Qur work was scrutinised by our independent
Customer Challenge Group, which has helped to shape and inform our interaction with our customers and the
development of our plans

A team has been set up to develop our 2015-20 Business Plan, which — for the first tme — will set out our
proposals for customers for the retail and wholesale sides of our business Competition for business
customers will open up In the industry from 2017, bringing new challenges and opportunities We are focusing
on developing retail and wholesale plans that will put us in a good position to make positive changes in the
years ahead To this end, we were In dialogue with Ofwat dunng the year about the changes needed to
facilitate the introduction of competition Along with other water companies, we established a clear and
ordered approach to the changes

Another area of focus for our Business Plan ts the development of a wastewater network that will cope with
the effects of more extreme wet weather With groundwater levels at a record high at the end of the year,
some of our sewer networks and pumping stations were overwhelmed by rain In the short term, our
operational and customer service teams worked round the clock to support our customers, keep the network
flowing and mimimise the nisk of pollutton from sewer flooding We also aflocated £4 million for investment in
support schemes far the waorst affected areas (n the long term, we want to further develap our partnership
with the Environment Agency and councils, which will take the lead on surface water management plans, to
tackle the causes of flooding In our catchments

Our financial results show an increase in operating profit to £331 0 milion compared with £271 6 million in
2011-12 This improvement was in ine with expectations and was largely driven by an 8 7 per cent increase
In turnover, reflecting our price Increase and a continued focus on controlling our operating costs Despite
challenging operating conditions and the additional costs incurred i1 managing the diought and subsequent
high groundwater tevels from the wet summer and winter, overalt operating costs, excluding depreciation, for
2012-13 fell by 0 5 per cent This reduction was, 1n part, driven by savings made through changes to our final
salary pension scheme together with process and contract improvements These savings offset the impact of
inflation and adverse weather on our costs

As we prepare for our next Business Plan, we are making good progress against our £1 8 billion capital
investment programme for 2010-15 We completed all of our planned work for 2012-13, spending £380 million
in the year This included our £300 million scheme to bring cleaner seas to Sussex, which reached the final
phase of testing and will be commissioned during 2013-14 The main site at Peacehaven meets the
requirements of the Environment Agency’s Environmental Permit, which became effective on 31 March, 2013
We also completed a £14 mulhon scheme to replace 48 kilometres of old water mains in Chatham, Kent, and
invested more than £10 milkon to renovate 22 kilometres of sewers and replace nearly six Kilometres of
rsings mains

Our investment dunng the year helped us to mantain stabie performance across three of our service areas —
water infrastructure (including water mains and reservoirs), water non-infrastructure (water treatment works)
and wastewater infrastructure (sewers) Our rating for wastewater non-infrastructure (wastewater treatment
works and pumping stations), slipped to marginal from stable because of i1ssues In operating new technology
to remove iron from the wastewater we recycle We have put an action plan in place to improve Mitigating our
impact on the environment remains & prionty and we met our target to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and
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pollution incidents, with serious incidents falling by more than 50 per cent We continued to work to our
environmental management system, which i1s certified to iSO 14001

The health and safety of all our customers, employees and contractors 1s of fundamental importance and we
achieved our best ever result tn terms of reportable injuries (RIDDORs) For the fifth year running, we were
presented with a President's Award by the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA)

Our work was recognised through a number of other awards dunng the year These included a Water Industry
Achievement Award for our campaign to keep sewers clear of fat, ol and grease and a Utility Industry
Actievement Award for our Learn to Swim scheme, which helps to teach thousands of children to swim every
year and which celebrated its 20™ anniversary in 2012

We continued to support the communities we serve through other educational work and chanty events We
raised more than £190,000 for good causes and maintained our sponsorship of the South and South East in
Bloom competition Working in partnership with STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths)
ambassadors, we reached thousands of pupils through education intiatives

Our staff responded in record numbers to the year's employee survey as we strive towards our goal of
appearing In The Sunday Times' Best Companies to Work For hst The headline results show an increase in
how engaged our people feel and we want to bulld on this We also achieved a silver award n our first
application to be histed by the Business in the Community chanty, which measures the performance of
companies agamst cntena in the workplace, marketplace, community and environment

In what was a particularly challenging year because of the weather, | would like to thank all of our staff and
suppliers who worked tirelessly to deliver a good service for the four million people we serve in Kent, Sussex,
Hampshire and the Isle of Wight

We have taken significant steps to address areas for improvement and will continue to do so moving forward
We will also ensure we continue to listen to our customers’ views as we develop our plans for the future to
meet their needs and their prionties | would ke to thank our customers for their valuable help in shaping our
plans so far

Moo Sl

Matthew Wnght
Chief Executive Officer
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Our business

Southern Water supplies drinking water to 2 39 million people and safely recycles the wastewater of 4 45
million people In Sussex, Kent, Hampshire and the Isle of Wight

Dunng 2012-13, we provided drinking water to our customers through 13,735 kilometres of mains, 202
service reservoirs and 90 supply works The quality of our tap water remained among the best in Europe, with
99 93 per cent of tests meeting stnngent quality standards in 2012 We supplied an average of 529 32 million
litres of water a day, with a peak of 595 million litres

We also recycled 730 million Iitres of wastewater a day, transporting it through approximately 39,000
kilometres of sewers and 2,360 pumping stations to our 368 wastewater treatment works After undergoing
treatment to stringent European quabty standards, wastewater 1s recycled back inte the environment By-
products from the treatment process are used to produce fertiliser for agniculture and to generate renewable
electncity

Our spending on service improvements totalled £380 million as part of our five-year plan to invest £1 8 bilhon
between 2010 and 2015, the equivalent of almost £1,000 for every property in our region Our work included
the final phase of our £300 milllon scheme to bring cleaner seas to Sussex, with the construction of a new
wastewater treatment works at Peacehaven, and a £14 milion project to replace 48 kilometres of water mains
in Kent

As part of our long-term plans to secure water resources for the region, we mnstalled more than 125,000 water
meters for our domestic customers The total number of meters installed as part of the programme reached
217,163 More than 58 per cent of our domestic water customers and 90 per cent of our business water
customers now have meters

We have a number of minor activities that are not regulated by our hcence but are related to our business
The non-appotnied activiies make up less than one per cent of our turnover and the main one I1s providing
property search information for homebuyers During the year, we supplied 65,000 residential property
searches, 1,000 fewer than in 2011-12, the level of activity reflecting the current property market conditions

Financial summary

Turnover £778.7m £716 2m 8 7%
Operating profit £331.0m £271 6m 21 9%
Profit on ordinary activities after tax £156.9m £79 9m 95 4%
Gross capital expenditure £380.0m £443 4m (14 3%)
Net cash inflow from operating activities £499.8m £487 tm 26%

Our turnover for 2012-13 was £778 7 million, an increase of 8 7 per cent from 2011-12, principally reflecting
our price increase The wet summer led to lower water consumption, which reduced turnover However, this
was offset by an increase in turnover resulting from a project to identify occupiers of properties previously
shown as empty on our records

We continued to strive to control operating costs and these fell by 0 5 per cent from 2011-12 We achieved
efficiencies through improved processes, contract re-negotiations and changes to the final salary pension
scheme These efficiencies offset cost increases incurred because of inflation and responding to the adverse
weather condiions As a result, operating profit increased to £331 0 milion
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Profit on ordinary activities after taxation was £156 9 milion Our shareholders are commutted to Southern
Water m the long term and, for the second year runmng, our ultimale owners did not recewve any dividend
payments in order to support the business in focusing on improving operational and financial performance

Intenm dividends of £43 2 million were paid to Southern Water Services Group (SWSG) during the year and
were more than offset by interest receivable of £56 9 million from SWSG No other ordinary dividends were
declared or paid for 2012-13

We invested £380 0 mithon to improve our water supply and wastewater treatment infrastructure and provide
a better service for the four million people we serve This investment, which was less than the £443 4 million
spent in 2011-12, reflected the completion of vanous projects to improve water qualty and lower expenditure
on our £300 milhon scheme to bring cleaner seas to Sussex as it reached its commissioning phase We
remam on track to deliver our £1 8 billion overall capital investment programme for 2010-15

Net cash inflow from operating activities increased to £499 8 million for 2012-13 from £487 1 mullion in 2011-
12 The increase mainly reflects the higher operating profit offset by an increase in working capital The
increase In working capital was expected and 1s mainly attributable to the price increase on turnover {(which
increases the value of debt relating to any current year), the roll out of our metening programme {which delays
the timing of billing to customers compared with unmetered customers) and an outstanding payment from
Southern Water in respect of the disposal of its iInvestment in Veolia Water South East

The average bill for our water and wastewater customers for 2012-13 was £427, a daily cost of £1 17 This
compares with an average bill of £402 in 2011-12

Strategic goals

Our ambition 1s to be recognised as the UK's leading water company The best, most successful companies
across the world are those that put their customers at the heart of therr business That's what we plan to do

Developing our plans for the future over the past year has been the start of our journey to being recognised
by our customers as an organisation which puts them first and gives them the service they want

We have identified 12 targets in our One Team, One Goal initiative to help us work towards better serving our
customers The targets are updated each year and cover

Customer service — how well we respond to customers’ queres and complaints, and the level of satisfaction
customers tell us they have with the service they receive

Drinking water quality — the cntically important measure which reflects the safety and cleanliness of the
drinking water we supply and the level of contact we receive from customers in relation to this
Environmental performance — the impact we have on the natural environment in our region, with the aim of
minwmising unsustainable activities

Asset performance - the reliability of the assets and equipment used in delivering our services, where our
objective 1s to ensure that service levels are maintained

Planning of our investment programme — the effectiveness with which we decide where to invest
customers' money, based on the feedback they give us on the service improvements they would like to see
Financial performance - how efficiently we spend customers’ maney in delivering services to them, and how
effectively we collect revenue from customers

Corporate responsibility — by ensuring the health, safety and engagement of our employees and
contractors, and contributing to social ams such as tackling affordabiity problems and minimising
greenhouse gas emissions, we aim to be a company that delivers its services in a way that reflects
customers’ wider priorities for the communities in which they live

Cne of the biggest challenges in the South East is ensunng secure water supplies in the face of water
scarcity, changing weather patterns and legistative changes We are currently leading the industry in our
Innovative approach to water resource planming We pioneered a new modelling technique in our 2015-40
Water Resources Management Plan This allows us to plan for a wider variety of weather patterns in the
future So far we are the only water company to adopt this approach [t builds on our industry-leading

10
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metering programme and our position as the company with the lowest level of leakage per property of the
main water and wastewater companies

On the wastewater side, we want to provide a network which copes better with the extremes of weather we
sometimes expenence We will do this by developing parntnerships with local authonties and the Environment
Agency to create robust surface water management plans and secure funding for necessary investment We
also want to take a more holistic approach as we plan how to meet even sirncter environmental standards in
the future and develop solutions that are more cost-effective for customers and do not increase carbon
emiIssIons

As we plan for the future, we are determined to put our customers at the heart of our business We have
significantly increased our level of customer consultation to ensure we deliver services that meet therr needs
We have created a strong Customer Challenge Group, with an independent charr, to oversee and challenge
the way in which we talk with customers and stakeholders and take their iews into account

We are focused on submitting a Business Plan for 2015-20, that offers value for money, reflects our
customers’ priorities, meets our environmental obligations and offers a robust water supply and wastewater
network for the future

in order to fund our capital programme, we must raise money from banks and investment funds Qur long-
term plan assumes that we can continue to barrow money at low cost, which means investors must have
confidence in our financial position and outlook When we set our Business Plan for the next five years, we
will need to balance our commitments with our abiity to raise the funding needed for investment in our
infrastructure

Water 1s an essential service and we want to ensure that bills are affordable and to play a key role in
developing payment schemes and tanffs that make it easier for our customers to pay Durnng the year, we
worked with our customers to develop a Social Tarniff, which we plan to ptiot In 2013 When the Government
finalises its reforms to the welfare system, we hope to be one of the first companies to introduce a solution
that works with ather agencies, councils and the Government to support customers struggling with their
finances

Our work in the communities we serve was recognised by the Business in the Community chanty, which
measures the corporate respensibility performance of companies against criteria in the workplace,
marketplace, community and environment We submutted our first application during the year, achieving a
silver award, and we will continuously improve our performance and move up the Corporate Responsibility
Index We also took a step closer to our goal to appear in The Sunday Times' Best Companies to Work For
st with an increase in staff engagement recorded tn our annual survey

Our regulators

We report on our performance to three key water industry regulators — Ofwat, the Drinking Water Inspectorate
(DW!I} and the Environment Agency (EA)

Ofwat monitors water compantes to ensure they provide a good and efficient service for customers at a fair
price Every five years, water companies submit business plans to Ofwat, setting out how they will maintain
and improve services for customers and the associated costs Ofwat then sets the maximum level at which
we can Increase customers’ bills for the next five-year period

Ofwat 1ssued a consultation document early in 2013 for the 2015-20 business plans and also published
proposals to change the terms under which water companies operate These changes mean the next
business plans will cover retail and wholesale separately to ensure companies are focused on improving
customer service and as a first step to open up the water industry to competition

The last price hmits were setin 2009 They allowed the following increases (known as the 'K’ factor), plus the
Retall Prices Index (RPI)

11
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Allowed price increase 'K’ factor -07% 00% 36% 3 3% -01%
Applied price increase 'K’ factor -07% 0 0% 36% 21%

In addition to the ‘K’ factor, Ofwat allowed us {0 Increase charges by an extra 1 4 per cent in 2011-12 This
adjustment related to the prowision of transitional tanffs to help customers move to water meters under our
metenng programme As a result of a lower than expected take up of the transitional tanff, we reduced the ‘K’
factor allowance that we applied to charges for 2013-14 to 2 1 per cent from the 3 3 per cent allowed

The DW1 oversees standards of drinking water in England and Wales and ensures we comply with the
stringent Water Supply (Water Quality) Regulations During the year, we carned out more than 221,000 water
quality tests to report to the DWI

Abstraction and recycling wastewater are regulated by the EA wia abstraction licences and discharge
consents The agency also ensures we meet the environmental standards set by UK and European
legistation We proactively report to the EA on our operations in relation to the water we abstract to supply to
customers and the wastewater we recycle to the environment

12
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Our customers

Our performance

201112

Target Achieved ’ Achieved

SIM score 75 62.2 650
Quantitative score 34 21.9 255
Qualitative score 41 40.3 394

One of the Important measures of the overall service we deliver for our customers 1s the Service Incentive
Mechanism (SIM), which was introduced by Ofwat in 2010 SIM 1s a key performance target and we are
focused an improving the underlying service to customers that it measures

During the year, we received more contact from our customers than we could deal wth effectively, particularly
in relatron to the drought and water restrictions, flooding inctdents during the wet weather and queries during
annual billing As a result, we did not improve our SIM measure and we were not always able to offer our
customers the level of service they deserve

QOur prionty for the year ahead I1s to improve our service so that we efficiently deal with customers’ quenes or
complaints the first time they contact us To help us do this, we began a senes of Voice of the Customer
workshops to engage with our customers and find out where they think we need to improve As a result, work
has already started to ensure we are clearer about the service we want to provide and that we recruit staff
who have the ability to deliver it

We also launched a review of the letters we wnite to customers and the conversations we have with them on
the tetephone, but our approach 1s not just about the service received by phone or post 1t 1s also about
making sure every decision we make as a company puts the needs of our customers first In the previous
year, we improved our SIM measure by 20 per cent and this 1s the improvement we want to builld on, ensuring
we can keep on Improving year on year

The SIM measure comprises two elements, quantitative and qualitative The quantitative score takes into
account written complaints and telephone calls, including the number of tmes when all of our ines are busy,
abandoned calls and ‘'unwanted calls’ — those which we could have avoided receving

During the year, we received 2 1 million telephone and written contacts from custemers, of which 1 8 million
concerned bilhng enguines and 0 3 milbon were related to operationat matters We answered 99 90 per cent
of wrntten enquires within five working days and 99 74 per cent of written complaints within 10 working days

Our quantitative score was disappointing in the first half of the year because of a higher than expected
number of telephone calls from customers However, following the implementation of an action plan,
performance improved for the second half of the year

For the qualitative score, Ofwat carnes out a ‘consumer expenence survey’ four times a year to assess the
views of 200 customers whose enquines have been resolved In this area, we scored 40 3, an improvement
on our performance in 2011-12

Our Guaranteed Standards Scheme (GSS) offers enhanced guarantees and/or payments to compensate
customers where we have falled to provide a mimimum standard of service Details of the scheme can be
found on our website, www southernwater.co.uk

The number of events under the statutory GSS and our voluntary Customer Charter, and the total value of
payments made last year compared to the previous year, are shown in the table below

13
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2012-13 2011-12

Statutory GSS — number of events 3,105 1,746
Statutory GSS — number of payments made 2,774 1,704
Statutory GSS — payments made £'000 313 186
Company Customer Charter — number of payments made 59 480
Company Customer Charter — payments made £000 4 17

The number of GSS payments increased duning the year as a direct result of the persistent heavy rain, which
led to unprecedented flooding incidents across our region Other factors included a major burst main and two
planned water mains repairs, which took longer than expected

Customer improvements

We launched a ‘turnaround’ plan dunng the year to ensure the service we provide for our customers
improves This included the appointment of a Chief Customer Officer, the restructuring of the customer senior
management team and re-launch of our Customer Cafl Centre, with a focus on having better conversations
with our customers to help us provide a better service

A large-scale training programme was introduced for members of staff who deal directly with customers To
help facilitate this, specialist contractors were brought in to handle customer enquines, giving staff the time to
attend training sessions The traiming 1s focused on four key areas

=  Keep customers properly informed
* Reduce time taken to solve 1ssues
=  Keep our promises

» Resolve Issues first time

We want to put customer service at the heart of all the work we do and the campaign 1s not just aimed at staff
who speak to custormners on the telephone, but at every one of our employees

Improvements and iniatives included a review of processes, particularly the way in which we correspond with
customers, and better quahty management and workflow One area of focus 1s a redesign of our water and
wastewater bills so that they are easier for customers tc understand We have been talking to customers in
workshops to find out therr iews We plan to implement this change later this year

The busiest time of the year for customer calls 1s between February and Apnl — when bills are sent out — so
we appointed an Annual Billing Manager, recruited more staff and held briefing workshops for employees We
also introduced an improved online reference tool, WaterPedia, to help our staff answer a wide range of
customer queries in a shorter ttme

We are updating our billing system in 2014 and we talked to customers to find out what improvements they
would hke to see As a result, the new system will include e-billing to enable more customers to easily monitor
and pay their bills online

During the year, we redesigned our website so that it better meets the needs of our customers as weil as to
give it a modem look and feel The nawvigation and layout were improved to make it quicker and easier for
customers to pay their bills, change thewr accounts and find out information

The number of visitors to the site increased by 43 per cent, breaking through the one million mark for the first
time with 1,023,604 people viewing 6 6 million pages We launched a Need Help? online service, offering
guidance and quick answers to hundreds of customer quenes The feature was used 189,000 times during
the year

14
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We can help you pay

The current state of the economy has put pressure on our customers and, durning the year, we helped more
than12,600 customers who were struggiing to pay their bilis, an increase of eight per cent on the previous
year

Overdue and bad debt i1s a key issue In the water industry, adding about £15 to every customer’s bill, so it's
important we work with our customers to keep debt to a minimum Qur Debt Advice Team answered 44,408
calls from customers in financial difficulties and more than 34,000 people visited the debt advice pages on our
website The sympathetic and practical work of our Debt Advice Centre was recognised in two categornes of
the national Credit Excellence Awards

A total of 418 customers received grants totalling £157,516 from the Southern Water Chantable Trust Fund, a
registered charnty established to help people facing financial hardship We also helped 3,098 customers,
nearly a third more than in the previous year, through the WaterSure tanff, which gives financial help to those
who use large amounts of water for essential purposes This includes people on income-related benefits with
three children under 19 In full-time education or customers with certain medical conditions

More than 2,200 customers who started to pay for their current yearly water bill by regular instalments had the
same amount cleared from their arrears under cur NewStart scheme A further 6,930 customers Joined a
Department for Work and Pensions scheme to repay their debts directly through therr benefit payments More
than 10,800 customers are now making payments under this scheme

The total we secured in benefits and tax credit payments for our customers as part of our metering
programme rose above £1 million durnng the year Cusiomers concerned about paying metered bills are put in
touch with IncomeMAX, an independent social enterprise that helps peaple claim their full benefit and tax
credit entitliement

The majority of gur customers who move to a meter see their water bills decrease For those who experience
an increase In charges, about 40 per cent, we offer our Changeover Tanff, which introduces any tncrease
gradually, and our Support Tanff, for those who have genuine difficulty in paying a higher bill

In the longer term, we are developing a Social Tanff, which we plan to pilot in 2013-14 with about 2,000
customers after the Government finalises its reform to the welfare system and the introduction of Uriversal
Credit We have been talking to our customers about how the Social Tanff may work, how it can meet their
needs and how much customers are prepared to pay to subsidise others

We would like the Government, iocal authorities and other utiity companies to work more closely so it 1s
simpler for customers to find support to pay therr bills and manage debt

15




"

Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2012-13

Water

Water quality
Overall drinking water guality index 99 98% 99.93% 99 95%
Disinfection control index 99 98% 99.99% 89 96%
Process control index 100% 99.92% 99 98%

The dnnking water we supplted in 2012 remained of the highest quality, with an overall rating of 99 93 per
cent

We carrned out more than 221,000 water quality tests to report to the Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) and
achieved an overall qualty score of 99 93 per cent Scientists tested for more than 100 substances i
samples taken from 90 water treatment works, 202 service reservors and from customers’ taps We also
carned out more than 200,000 additional tests to measure samples against our own standards, which are
more stringent than those set by our regulators

The most significant concern remains the number of taste and odour failures in the year and, as a result, our
overall score was shghtly below our own company target of 99 98 per cent To address thes 1ssue, we have
installed a new treatment plant at our Beauport works in Hastings, East Sussex, where the majority of the
falures cccurred We also completed our £70 mitllon programme of mprovements at our water treatment
works, helping us to maintain our excellent performance in the DWI's disinfectton control index

We invested more than £15 million to upgrade processes at our water treatment works dunng 2012-13 This
included beginning work on a £2 millkion scheme to remove nitrates from a groundwater source in Hampshire
We also flushed 192 kilometres of water mains duning the year This was shightly lower than our target
because we suspended mans flushing during the drought to conserve water supplies

An update of our dninking water safety plans was completed by March 2013, providing us with a revised set of
risk assessments that will be used to help us identify future investments for inclusion in our next Business
Plan

Water supply
Performance water non-infrastructure Stable Stable Stable
Performance water infrastructure Stable Stable Stable
Distribution maintenance index (2012 calendar year) 100% 99.94% 99 88%
Security of supply index (critical penod) 100 100 100
Secunty of supply index {annual average) 100 100 100

The year began in drought, with the announcement of water restrictions in Kent and Sussex after one of
the driest 12 months on record We were among seven water companies to introduce restrictions in April
following two dry winters that left groundwater and reservorr levels very low
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To help refill our largest reservoir, Bewl Water, we applied to the Enviranment Agency (EA) for a Drought
Permit to allow us to take more water from the River Medway in Kent However, the introduction of water
restnctions was followed by unprecedented downpours during the spring and early summer, with some areas
expenencing more than double the average rainfall This helped to return groundwater and reservorrs to
healthier levels, enabling us to lift the restrictions in June

Thanks to improvements made to our supply network, we were In a better position than we would have been
in similar dry circumstances in previous years Leakage is at our lowest level ever, our new storage reservoir
IS now in operation at Hardham, West Sussex, and our metening programme 1s well under way

We carned out investigations into developing new sources of water identified in our Water Resources
Management Plan Alongside metering, this will help to secure supphies for the future Our investigations
included the possibility of developing aquifer storage and recovery in Sussex This is where water 1s pumped
from nvers when flows are high in winter to be stored in underground aquifers (natural reservoirs) ready for
use when water is less plentiful

In Hampshire, we carned out a public consultation en a scheme to secure water supplies involving the
construction of an 18 5 kiometre pipeline between Testwood Water Supply Works (WSW) in Totton and
Otterbourne WSW, together with work to enhance the existing treatment facihities at the Testwood site The
scheme would enable us to treat more water at Testwood and pump it to Otterbourne Linking these two
strategic sites would provide greater flexibiity and help secure supplies when a more stnngent mit 1s placed
by the EA on the amount of water we can take from the Rwver ltchen after 2015

Leakage

201112

Leakage (rmmithon litres of water per day) 90 81 82

We invested £13 milion dunng the year to further drive down leakage to cur lowest ever level, beating the
target set by Ofwat by nine mithon iitres of water each day

We continue o deliver one of the lowest levels of leakage per property of all water supply companies and the
lowest of the water and wastewater companies, working round the clock to find and repair ieaks on our
13,735 kilometre network of water mains The milder winter weather helped us to achieve our target because
we did not expenience the freezing conditions that lead to more bursts and leaks

Leak alarms on the water meters we are mstalling as part of our metenng programme are also helping to
reduce leakage and save water The first of their type in the UK, the alarm 1s activated when water runs
continuously through the meter for four hours The alarm 1s picked up when the meter 1s read (four tmes in
the first year) so that a leak can be identified and repaired

Since the start of our metenng project, leaks have been detected in 1 3 per cent of the properties involved
Between 2010 and 2015, this could save 7 6 million hires of water each day — enough to supply the needs of
60,000 people, or a town the size of Ashford

We replaced 71 kilometres of ageing water mains during the year to reduce the risk of burst pipes and leaks
This was part of our plans to replace 256 kilometres of water mains between 2010 and 2015
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Metering

More than 250,000 new water meters have been fitted under our five-year programme to ntroduce them for
the majonty of our customers across Hampshire, Sussex and Kent From these, more than 215,000
households have now moved to metered charges

Metering 1s a key part of our long-term plans to secure water resources for the future because households
with a meter tend to use around 10 per cent less On the Isle of Wight, where nearly every property was
metered about 20 years ago, water consumption has dropped from 165 litres per person a day to 135 Iitres —
a substantial saving of 18 per cent

Durtng the year, our meter installation teams worked in Worthing and Brighton and Hove In Sussex, the New
Forest and north of Southampton in Hampshire, as well as in Gravesend in Kent

Nearly 60 per cent of households that have moved to metered charges under the project have expernenced
their water hills going down Customers whose bills increased were offered support through our changeover
and support tariffs These help to introduce any bill Increase gradually, giving households time to make
savings on their water use

We provided our customers with practical advice and support on how to save water, energy and money,
including advice in booklets and online A total of 21,449 home water and energy audits were carned out by
our team of Green Doctors In customers' homes

Expert help is available for those who may have genuine difficulty m paying therr metered water bill, including
free support from independent money experts IncomeMAX To date, this support has helped customers to
claim more than £1 million in benefits and tax credits which they did not know they were entitied to or were
not claiming previousty

We are leading the UK water industry with our metenng scheme and, durning the year, hosted a conference for
colleagues from other companies, as well as the Government and other organisations, to share what we have
learned from developing and implementing the first programme of its kind in the country

Our water efficiency campaigns helped us to reach our target of saving 1 01 miliion litres of water each day
dunng 2012-13 Practical and educational inihatives were used to promote saving water durning the year and
you can find out more about these In our community section

Sales of discounted water efficiency products from our partners Straights and B&Q soared during the year
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Wastewater

Safely recycling wastewater

2012-13 201112
Performance wastewater non-infrastructure Stable Marginal Stable
Performance wastewater infrastructure Stable Stable Stable

Our work to recycle wastewater safely 1s a priority and we invested nearly £218 milllon during the year to
improve our service

We spent more than £6 million to rengvate 22 kilometres of sewers and £4 million on replacing nearly six
kilometres of nsing mamns — the large sewers that connect to our treatment works and pumping stations We
also used cameras in 336 kilometres of sewers to check for blockages, a build-up of fat, all and grease, and
damage that could lead to poilution and flooding

The majority of our wastewater treatment works, 359 out of 368, met the stringent conditions set by the
Environment Agency (EA) A key part of our investment was the introduction of new processes at 19 of our
treatment works to help remove ron from the wastewater we clean and recycte to nvers and the sea This
involved new technology that has proved more challenging to operate As a resuit of this and the very wet
weather during the year, our rating for operating our works slipped from stable to marginal To address this,
we launched an action plan to increase training and increase the tevel of understanding of new processes

tn a major milestone, our new wastewater treatment works at Peacehaven in East Sussex became complant
with EA requirements, bringing wastewater treatment in the area up to the latest European standards The
project includes a new wastewater treatment works and sludge recycling centre, 11 kilometres of sewer
tunnel, two pumping stations and a 2 5 kilometre long sea outfall The works will handle 95 milhion litres of
wastewater each day, serving the residents of Peacehaven, Telscombe Cliffs, Ovingdean, Rottingdean,
Saitdean and Brighton and Hove More than 3 5 million man hours were worked at the site without a single
accident that resulted in tme off work The site covers 39 hectares and 1s surrounded by four kilometres of
perimeter fencing and more than one million cubic metres of earth were moved dunng construction work

The site went into its final phase of work dunng the year — where we test to ensure the new equipment works
correctly — and each of the processes was tested in turn The majonty of landscaping was completed and,
featuring one of the largest grass roofs in Europe, the works seamlessly blends into the surrounding
downland landscape

Other key investments included the start of a £9 milhion upgrade of three wastewater treatment works around
Tunbridge Wells in Kent and another £9 million upgrade at Morestead Road Wastewater Treatment Works in
Winchester, Hampshire

Work began on a £12 million scheme at Ashford Wastewater Treatment Works in Kent to increase its capacity
to allow for future population growth in the area A £25 8 millon major environmental improvement scheme
also got under way at Milibrook Wastewater Treatment Works in Southampton to upgrade treatment of the
water before 1t I1s recycled to the Solent
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Flood protection

Flooding was a sernous 1ssue dunng the wettest year on record in England Record levels of groundwater
compounded the challenges to our network This increased the nisk of flooding because the ground was so
saturated it led to water infiltrating our sewer network and customers’ private drains Hampshire and Sussex
were the worst affected areas

We responded to emergency incidents round the clock, using tankers where necessary to clear drains as
sewers became overwhelmed, pumping water to rivers and the sea to avoid flooding and drafting in teams of
customer support staff to help affected households

The i1ssue of flooding 1s complex, with various agencies responsible for different aspects of drainage To
address the 1ssues In the long term, we are working with counciis and the Environment Agency to develop
and implement surface water management plans in the areas affected A multi-agency solution would, In
many cases, help prevent rain getting into the sewers and ensure drains can better cope with high levels of
rain in the future

We are already nvesting to improve our network and will continue to do so as part of a partnership approach
In the short term, we allocated £4 million to help address some of the iImmediate flooding 1ssues tn the region
This included investigating public and private sewers with cameras to identify and seal leaks, thereby
preventing groundwater from flooding the network, and upgrading pumping stations and sewers to cope with
the increased flows

Buring the year, we also invested nearly £500,000 to tackle flooding at the properties of more than 100
customers across the region

Work continued on our £20 milion scheme to radically change the Victorian sewer system in Portsmouth The
project will reduce the nsk of properties in Portsmouth and Southsea being flooded by overflowing sewers, as
well as protect water quality in and around Langstone Harbour Since Victorian times, the sewers have camed
both wastewater and rainwater in a combined system The new network wall include pipes that will carry only
rainwater, which will be discharged into the sea to ease pressure on the sewers

We also continued our £1 6 million investment in a scheme to reduce the risk of flooding at Milford-on-Sea In
Hampshire, where sewers become overloaded in heavy rain An underground tank, capable of holding up to
one million litres of water, will store water during storms

Preventing smells

With 368 wastewater treatment works and 2,360 pumping stations, it 1s important for us to be a good
neighbour in the communities we serve

We work hard to prevent smells from our sites and, dunng 2012-13, the number of complaints we received fell
to 322, the lowest level recaorded Overall, complaints about smell have reduced by more than 60 per cent
over the past 10 years

During the year, we spent £470,000 on proactively maintaining odour control equipment at many sites, with
particular focus on sensitive works, such as East Worthing in Sussex, and places where we received more
than 10 complaints We have adopted a practice of wnting to residents, warning them of possible smells, If we
need to carry out essential maintenance work

Odour control equipment was upgraded at three of our treatment works Aylesford and Paddock Wood in Kent
and Goddards Green in West Sussex Further upgrade work i1s under way at Peel Common in Hampshire and
our new wastewater treatment works and sludge recyching centre at Peacehaven in East Sussex has state-of-
the-art odour control equipment
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Protecting the environment

Bathing water quality

Every beach in our region met European standards for bathing water quality in 2012, despite the wettest year
on record

All 82 of our bathing waters met the European mandatory standard durning weekly samphing carnied out by the
Environment Agency between May and September More than 70 per cent met the tighter guideline standard

The wet summer posed a nisk for bathing water quality because run-off from roads and agricultural land can
carry poliutants into streams, rivers and seas We worked with a group cailed the Cleaner Seas Forum, led by
Defra minister Richard Benyon, to take a lead on 1ssues that affect coastal water quality

Under the revised Bathing Water Directive, new higher quahity standards will be introduced for bathing water
quality from 2015 and there will be a requirement to provide public information on water quahty at all bathing
water areas

We continued to take part in a voluntary tnal to notify local authonty beach managers, In as close to real-time
as possible, of any stormwater releases from ocur combined sewer overflow pipes, which are pipes that
release water from the sewer network If it becomes overwhelmed dunng very heavy rain The number of sites
involved was extended to 20 during the year, taking in Chichester and Brighton

Preventing pollution

All pollution incidents (wastewater), Category 1-3 314 409 479
Serious pollution incidents (wastewater), 6 10 21
Category 1-2

Discharge permit comphance 97 8% 86.8% 96 1%

There were fewer poliution incidents in the year despite the challenges of the wettest year on record in
England We recorded 409 incidents, a reduction of 14 per cent, while the number of serious incidents also
fell by more than 50 per cent, from 21 to 10 Even so, the impact of the weather meant that we did not see the
reduction we hoped to achieve

There was a 28 per cent reduction in incidents related to sewers or combined sewer overflows The number
of incidents fell from 200 1n 2011 to 144 1n 2012

We achieved the improvements following the implementation of an action plan to target our investment better,
improve maintenance, provide extra training and review our alarms This included a review of our sewer
Jetting programme and the introduction of Total Care Plans for more than 400 wastewater pumping stations
When there are incidents, a dedicated team ensures that any impact on the environment 1s mimmised and
instigates remedial and mitigation work If the affected sites do not recover quickly

Duning the year, we started work on an £8 millon improvement scheme for East Worthing Wastewater
Treatment Works in Sussex after a build-up of non-biodegradable debns blocked the flow into the works and
wastewater was diverted into the sea via an emergency outfail

Nearly three-quarters of sewer blockages are caused by things that should not go down them A number of
pollution incidents resulted from sewer blockages caused by a build-up of fat We targeted areas where
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blockages are a problem and continued to highlight the dangers of pounng fat, oil and grease (FOG) down
drains

Our work to keep sewers clear won the FOG Reduction lnshiative of the Year category in the Water Industry
Achievement Awards The inthative was delivered in partnership with Work This Way, a chanty which helps to
rehabilitate offenders by employing them to recycle cooking ous into bio-fuels

With other water companies and the Environment Agency, we reviewed the national guidelines on pollution
reporting to ensure 1t is consistent n future, this may be based on the impact of pollutions rather than the
number We reported 86 per cent of pollution incidents to the Environment Agency ourselves, the highest rate
of self-reporting in the water industry

Recycling waste

2012-13 201112
Achieved | Achieved

Satisfactory sludge disposal 100% 100% 100%

We achieved our target to safely recycle 100 per cent of the solids left over after we clean and return the
water from wastewater to our rivers and seas

In previous years, we have dried most of this product to create a granular fertiliser, but we have changed our
strategy because of nsing energy costs and a drive to reduce carbon emissions

We now produce more bio-solids, which are treated with ime and sold to farmers to be used as fertihser on
therr land The wet weather dunng 2012-13 made this more challenging because of the saturated land, but we
were still able to meet our target of 100 per cent for satisfactory sludge disposal

Caring for the environment

Southern Water's care for the environment 1s recognised in our on-going commitment to maintaiming our
certification to 1ISO 14001 Complance with 1ISO 14001 helps us identfy, manage and mitigate our impacts on
the environment, prevent pollution, maximise efficiency savings and ensures that we meet environmental
legisiation

Following our three-year re-certification in 2011, we again passed our annual five-day audit and were praised
for “our notable enthustasm to get things nght, combined with a marked improvement in environmental
awareness and housekeeping on the sites visited” The I1SO 14001 auditors also recorded significant
improvement In our management of chemicals, olls and environmental hazard documents

We completed an updated 'risk list’ for our water treatment works to be incorporated into our Asset Risk
Management Scheme This addresses an action by the ISO 14001 auditors to consider in more detall how we
manage nsk and considers our treatment works by the type of treatment they use and theirr impact on the
environment We also updated our Environmental Management System manual with guidance on how to
tackle oil spills on our sites and new procedures to assess the environmental consequences of fire

In addition, we Iintroduced a new process {0 ensure we can thoroughly assess the ments of employees’
environmental proposals for our sites — such as planting trees, enhancing habstats and setting up partnerships
with conservation groups This will ensure proposals comply with our health and safety standards, our daily
operations and future plans

The success of our on-going certificatron relies on all of our staff working to the same environmental principles
and, dunng the year, the number of employees who successfully completed Environmental Management
System trainmg rose to 96 per cent
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Climate change

Carbon performance

2012-13 2011-12
334

Greenhouse gas emissions — ktCO2e 286 268

Although our carbon emissions increased slightly on the previous year, they were significantly below our
target of 334 kilotonnes of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gasses

We produced 286 kilotonnes of such gases in 2012-13 — beating our target by 48 kiotonnes, the equivalent of
travelling 144 million miles in an average petrol car

The target 1s based on our projections of our emissions rsing by 57 kilotonnes each year between 2010 and
2015 as we use more energy to treat water and wastewater to the more stringent quality standards set by the
Environment Agency and to allow for the extra demands of population growth We work continuously to
mitigate these increases by generating more renewable energy and becoming more energy and water
efficient We are also explorning more holistic ways to meet the tighter standards through alternative methods
which require less energy and emissions

The record level! of rain during the year resulted in an increase in energy use because we needed to pump
and treat more water entering the sewerage network An increase in energy use directly impacts on our
emissions, so we worked hard on a number of energy efficiency initiatives to mitigate the increases and stay
in hine with our target

We developed a model to assess the carbon impact of new schemes to upgrade our water and wastewater
network in the future The model calculates the carbon emission to construct the scheme and the on-going
running costs These calculations will help us become more aware of the levels of carbon in different
materials and the relative carbon efficiency of different types of treatment The maodel 1s being used to
consider schemes for our 2015-20 Business Plan and will help us deliver lower whole life carbon solutions
the future

We continued to hold the Carbon Trust Standard in recognition of our steps to measure and manage our
carbon emissions We also bought £2 8 million of carbon allowances in the Government’s Carbon Reduction
Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme in which we were ranked second agamst other water and wastewater
companies for the management of carbon emissions

Renewable energy

We invested more than £4 milhion durning the year to install additonal Combined Heat and Power (CHP) plants
at our wastewater treatment works in Peacehaven, Ford, Bexhill and Hastings in Sussex and at Sandown on
the Isle of Wight

The plants capture bio-gas produced during the wastewater freatment process and use it to produce energy
to power the works, with any surplus exported to the National Gnd Heat recovered from engines and
exhausts 1s used to warm the treatment tanks This helps to speed up the digestion process and makes it
more efficient

The four new plants will help us reduce our carbon emissions by about 10,335 tonnes a year, equivalent to
driving 31 milllon miles In an average petrol car We now have 16 operational plants with a capacity to
generate about 70 million kWh of electricity each year, about 15 per cent of our total electricity use
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We also increased the amount of renewable energy we generate by targeting the waste we treat at the plants
which have the capacity to generate the most energy Our CHP plant at Budds Farm in Hampshire generated
enough renewable energy to provide all the heat needed for the treatment processes In addition, we are
investigating the possibility of injecting biogas into the mains gas network at five of our treatment works and
exploring opportunities for large-scale solar power use

Working more efficiently

Our daily work to supply water and recycle wastewater requires a lot of energy and we continually strive to
work more efficiently to reduce our impact on the environment

We use an aeration process to treat wastewater and this 1s energy intensive During the year, we carried out
feasiblity studies inte adding ‘real time’ controls that could reduce energy use by up to 20 per cent The
controls work by adjusting the process to deal with conditions 1n the works at the present time, rather than
working to an overall average We awarded contracts dunng the year to install the controls at two sites, with a
further two in the pipeline

More than 75 per cent of our energy censumpticn 1s for powering pumps and air blowers and we continued to
test their efficiency at 100 of our largest works This has helped us to plan a major refurbishment programme
to gain optimum efficiency and reduce our carbon emissions

Centrnfuges used to reduce the amount of water in the waste we treat are also using 15 per cent less
electricity thanks to changes in the way we operate them We also planned trials to install more effective
pumps at seven boreholes where we abstract water from underground aguifers

Other imtiatives dunng the year included pilots for more targeted use of chemicals to reduce the overall
amount required and the introduction of CoPilot systems with Satnav technology for our meter readers to help
them calculate the most efficient routes to take dnive-by readings

We also installed energy sensors at several pumping stations to detect when blockages happen so that the
pumps automatically operate to remove the matenal creating the blockage This reduces the nisk of pollution
and means that staff don't have to travel to the site to remaove the blockage manually

During the winter, the National Gnd uses peak rates, known as Triad charges, to encourage users to reduce
their energy consumption We implemented plans to improve our Triad avoidance performance by switching
off more plant and producing more power from our own generators

Our contractors also found an innovative way to recycle off-cuts from plastic pipes into products such as bags
and compost bins and to recycle sewer gnit and screenings into compost, both of which would previously have
gone to landfill
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Our future plans

Our long-term vision

We published our Strategic Statement for 2015-40 in stages between September 2012 and April 2013 This I1s
a key document that sets out our customers’ prionties for the next 25 years and how we plan to deliver them

The statement i1s based on extensive research with our customers and stakeholders who reviewed each
chapter as it was published It looks at the challenges the water industry will face in the future and outlines six
outcomes that customers say matter most to them They are

A constant supply of high quality drinking water
Removing wastewater effectively

Looking after the environment

Responsive customer service

Better information and advice

Affordable bills

The statement then considers the options available to us to deliver these long-term outcomes and which are
the most cost-effective and sustainabile

Securing water supplies

Planning takes place 25 years in advance for how we will secure healthy, reliable water supplies for our
customers We updated our plans duning the year and our draft Water Resources Management Plan (WRMP)
for 2015-40 was submitted to Defra in March, ahead of a 12-week pubhc consultation between May and
August

We conducted extensive customer research and held a sernies of workshops with stakeholders to explain the
planning process and gain feedback on the options we are considertng to secure a robust water supply
network This identified strong support for aquifer storage and recovery, water re-use, tackling leaks and
water efficiency

With the University of East Angla and Newcastle University, we carned out pioneenng work which enables us
to understand the iImpact on customers of a wider range of droughts than we have previously seen Typically,
plans are based on historic rainfall data, the frequency and seventy of past droughts and the impact this will
have on water resources We are pilobing a planning process that not only looks at historic events but also
generates a series of alternative events, for example, a continuation of the 1976 drought This will improve the
resllience of our water suppiies and put us in a better position to cope with the challenges of changing
weather in the water-stressed South East

The investment required to supply water for the first five years of the WRMP 1s then included in the 2015-20
Business Plan for financing Durning the planning process, we worked with other local water companies to
develop a plan for the whole region This will help to build a regional grid to transfer water supplies to areas
where they are most under pressure

We also updated our Drought Plan, which sets out how we would secure drinking water supplies for our
customers during very dry periods We held a public consuitation on the plan and published a final version in
February after responding to feedback and receiving approval from Defra

Dunng the year, we aiso took steps to meet the aspirations of the Water White Paper, the Government's
wvision for the future of the water industry We took a lead role in engaging with our regufators in the
development of a more sustainable water abstraction regime and explored initiatives to set up opportunities
for trading water with other kicence holders, such as farmers
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Five-year business plan

Every five years, water companies draw up thew business plans, which set out how they will maintain and
improve their services for customers and the associated costs

During the year, we started to develop our Bustness Plan for 2015-20, using the results of extensive research ;
with customers and stakeholders on a wide range of issues This process helped us identify the six long-term ‘
outcomes that customers want us to deliver Our plans will set out the delivery of outcomes in the next five

year penod while, at the same time, addressing the challenges of the future, such as population growth and

thousing development, chimate change and water industry reform

In February, the industry regutator, Ofwat, published a consultation on its approach to setting prices for water
compames’ business plans The consultation confirmed that Ofwat expects companies to focus far more on
engaging with their customers and stakeholders and delivering the outcomes they want It also confirmed that
Ofwat expects us to produce a single business plan with four elements household retail services, non-
househoid retail services, wholesale water services and wholesale wastewater services Retail services
include customer service, biling and meter reading while wholesale includes the operation, maintenance and
improvement of our treatment works, pumping stations and pipe network

Our new Business Plan 1s due to be pubhshed in draft format in late surnmer 2013 for review and comment by
customers and stakeholders It will also be reviewed by our Customer Challenge Group, an independent body
set up to ensure we reflect our customers’ priorities In our plans The final Business Plan will be submitted to
Ofwat for approval in late 2013 under its Price Review 2014 (PR14) Ofwat will determine the investment we
can make and the charges customers will pay in the five years ahead

Challenges for the future

The water industry faces many challenges in the future to balance the need to supply and safely recycle water
at a price customers can afford while afso protecting the environment

As we draw up our 25-year plans for the future, we are taking these challenges into account o ensure we can
develop and maintain a resihent system for the 21 century Among the biggest challenges we face are the
effects of climate change and changing weather patterns

During the year, we expenenced drought and water restrictions followed by the wettest year on record In

England We can plan ahead for climate change, but it 1s more challenging to predict the frequency of more
extreme weather conditions We want to take a more holistic approach which balances the demand to meet
stricter standards with the need to keep customer bills and carbon emissions as low as possible |

Mare housing and an increase in the population in the South East, in addition ta more people iving on therr
own, will put additional pressure on resources and we are worktng closely with the planning authonties to
cater for their predictions of growth

We also need to ensure that we invest and work wath others to comply with European legislation to deliver |
higher environmental standards These might mean that we have to signficantly reduce the amount of water |
we are able to take from nvers and underground aquifers to supply dnnking water

|
The Water Framework Directive also calls for higher environmental standards to be met when recyclhng water |
This could lead to a need for more treatment processes and increased costs, potentially adding up to an
investment for us of £490 million over the next 15 years

Other key challenges include the nsing cost of energy and its effect on the environment and climate change
as well as the state of the economy, its impact on our customers and our ability to finance investments in the
company [t s vital we take these challenges into account as we plan to dehiver the water and wastewater
services our customers have asked for over the next 25 years
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We are listening

Consulting our customers

As a regulated monopoly and the prowider of an essential service, we need to ensure that everything we do 1s
in the best interests of customers

Hearng the views of our customers and the communities we serve 1s at the core of our future planning
Duning the last year, we carnied out extensive customer research through more than 50 focus groups, onhne
and phone surveys with thousands of customers, face-to-face interviews with nearly 100 customers and via a
dedicated website www.swhaveyoursay.co.uk

In addition, we held more than 15 stakeholder workshops with representatives from councils, business
forums, environmental groups, trade crganisations, financial advice groups and other interested parties to
understand therr priorites We also spoke to youth groups and organisations representing the elderly to
ensure we heard the views of all our customers

We talked to customers and stakeholders about the quality of thewr water, how we secure water resources for
the future, how we recycle wastewater and how to tackle floeding This has helped us to better understand
the aspects of our service customers value most, the areas where they would like to see improvements and
how much they would like to pay for mprovements We will continue talking to our customers as we develop
and deliver our plans

Working in partnership

We recognise that working in partnership with the communities we serve can bring wider benefits to our
customers and help us provide a better service

During the year, we engaged with organisations in the South East to help develop schemes to protect the
quality of the water in our rivers, deliver water-saving advice to our customers, understand their financial
difficultres and tackle the growing problem of flooding We are also working extensively with other water
companies to develop a regional water gnd and plans for sustainable water abstraction

We talked to nver and wildhfe trusts and the South Downs National Park Authonty about developing
catchment management schemes By working to prevent nitrates reaching our water sources or helping to
keep rivers flowing freely, we can preserve our water sources for longer while also protecting the
environment

Tackling flooding 1s a key 1ssue and we worked In partnership with councils and the Environment Agency to
develop plans to help reduce the nsk of all types of fiooding as more extreme weather patterns become
increasingly common We continued to work with the environmental chanty Groundwork to offer water and
energy saving advice to our customers as part of our meterning programme We also worked with Waterwise,
the leading water efficiency orgamisation

Qur research to develop a social tanff to help customers who have difficulty paying theiwr water bills was
conducted with input from the Citizens Advice Bureau and we worked closely with Kent, Sussex and
Hampshire Police ta help protect our customers from bogus callers

Our am 1s to continue to develop strong and innovative partnerships across our region to help us deliver the
services our customers want in the most cost-effective and beneficial way to our communities
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Customer Challenge Group

The Customer Challenge Group (CCG) for Southern Water met regularly during the year, offering feedback
and advice as we developed our plans for the future

We set up the group as part of the process to develop our Business Plan and set price and investment hmits
for 2015-20 Anna Bradley, former Chief Executive of the National Consumer Counclil, 1s the independent
chair of the group, which also includes members from the Consumer Council for Water, East Sussex County
Council, the Environment Agency, Sussex Enterprise, Central and South Sussex Citizens Advice, the
Drinking Water Inspectorate, Natural England, WWF and Waterwise

The group’s puspose I1s to scrutinise, adwvise and challenge our customer engagement strategy and the way in
which we interpret the feedback we receive The group will report to Ofwat on the qualty of our consultation
and how well our customers' opinions have been reflected in our plan We value the work of the CCG and
intend to continue working with the group beyond the next price review

The CCG held four meetings, six conference calls and a series of one-to-one meetings on key areas including
the Water Resources Management Plan, investment strategy and retail strategy The group has also 1ssued a
number of formal advice notes to the Board on our engagement, which are published on the group's website
www.swceg.org.uk

Anna Bradley also visited a number of our water and wastewater works, a metering installation site and spoke
at our Asset Conference on Customer Service and the Future of Utiihes Conference in London
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Reform and competition

Reform in the water industry

We have seen a continued debate about reform and change in the water sector As a major company In this
sector, we want to play an active part in the debate and we will support reforms where the change 1s In the
best interest of our customers

The Draft Water Bill was published in July 2012 It outlines the changes required to bring competition to the
retail market for commercial customers and reforms for the wholesale market, as set out In the Water White
Paper, Water for Life, published in 2011 These changes sit alongside measures to encourage bulk trading of
water between companies, extend the scope of the environmental permit regime to abstraction ficences and
make the costs associated with connecting new developments more transparent

We responded to the Parliamentary Environment Food and Rural Affairs (EFRA) Committee to say that we
did not believe the Bill sufficiently picked up the themes of the White Paper — such as resilience, climate
change, population growth and sustainability — as strongly as it could have done EFRA subsequently
published its report on the Bill, makmg similar comments We will continue to lobby for more focus on the
resilience of water and wastewater services

We are also keen to play a leading role in the development of an Abstraction Incentive Mecharism (AIM),
abstraction licence reform and trading pools and are working closely with our regulators to work out the best
way to develop real water trading mechanisms and reduce the abstraction of water from sites under
environmental pressure

Getting ready for competition

The publication of the Draft Water Bill during the year paves the way for retall market opening in the water
industry from Aprit 2017 From this date, all businesses and public sector bodies in England will be able to
switch their water and wastewater suppliers, improve therr efficiency and tender for services best suited to
their individual needs The Bilt also potentially opens up a market for wholesale water supply services further
down the hine

Our economic regulator, Ofwat, will now set separate price controls for retail and wholesale activities for
2015-20 Our Business Plan, therefore, will cover our retall activities, such as biling and answering customer
calls, and our wholesale activities, supplying water and recycling wastewater

In order to achieve this, Ofwat needed to modify water company licences A number of proposals were
brought forward by Ofwat in 2012 to increase regulatory flexibility over how it sets price imits in the future
Changes have now been agreed which provide the basis for evolutionary change to the regulatory regime,
with increased flexibility for Ofwat 1in how it can set retail prices but not wholesale prices at this stage

We think 1t I1s both heaithy and inewitable that the water industry evolves However, we felt the first proposals
created too much uncertainty The industry continues to need to raise significant debt to finance investment
programmes If lenders think that the uncertainty has increased, this will mean higher borrowing costs and
higher customer bills

We are in favour of introducing retail competition for business customers and are committed to delivering
rmore and better services for them and are working towards the Apnil 2017 date

There are no current plans to introduce competition for households The Government's assessment Is that the
costs of introducing competition into the household market at this time would significantly outweigh any
benefits
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Our workplace

Health and safety

We achieved our best health and safety performance duning the year and improved on 2011-12, which was
our previous record for the lowest number of safety-related injuries

This achievement included our lowest rate of 0 20 RIDDOR (Reporting of Injunes, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences Regulations) injunes per 100 full-tme employees and key contractors We also had a three-
month penod with no incidents for our staff

For the fifth year running, we were presented with the Royal Society for the Praevention of Accidents (RoSPA)
President's Award This 1s given to companies that demonstrate outstanding performance i health and safety
at work by achieving 10 or more consecutive RoSPA Gold Awards We reached the Gold RoSPA standard for
the 14™ year in a row and several of our contractors were also recognised with RoSPA awards

More than 100 people attended our health and safety conference for office-based staff The conference,
which focused on health and well-being, was supported by a range of partners, including focal NHS trusts and
the Bntish Heart Foundation About 200 employees and contractors also attended a supply chain conference
on tnnovation, working together and sharing best practice

During the year, we played a key role in developing a national Safe Dig Charter, which we and our main
contractors signed up to The charter outlines seven steps to help reduce the nsk of damaging underground
utility services during excavations '

We continued our Aim for Zero Injuries campaign, with £2 donated to charity for every near miss or hazard
reported by staff and contractors The challenge raised nearly £14,000 for Air Ambulance trusts in the region
This equates to about 16 potentially life-saving missions by the air ambulance crews

Our people

At 31 March, we employed 2,092 peopte across our region, including 38 apprentices and 527 staff in our two
Sussex-based call centres indirectly, we support maore than 2,000 jobs through our current capital investment
programme

We are committed to developing our staff and tnvested the equivalent of £1,325 per employee in training
dunng the year to support them in therr roles

As part of our strategic initiatives to develop the skills of cur managers, 54 employees took part in our
Leaders for Tomorrow course and another 60 received training in project management Both schemes are
approved by the appropnate professional bodies and successful candidates receive an accredited
qualification In addition, more than 200 staff are scheduled to take part in customer service traming to help
improve our performance in this area

Seventeen apprentices graduated from our award-winmng scheme at our Apprentice of the Year ceremony
and 12 more were recruited into new water supply and distnibution schemes Thirty-two people also took part !
in our week-long Employee Development Programme, which ran for the 43" time 1 2012

In addition to training and development, we maintained our focus on helping to make our company a better
place to work, supported by 150 employee engagement champions In new initiatives, more than 160
nominations were received n the first Southern Water STAR (Staff Thanks And Recognition) Awards and a
choir was formed, bringing together people from across the company

Seventy-two per cent of staff responded in our annual employee survey, the highest since it began in 2003
The results showed a 1 5 per cent increase in the level of staff engagement compared with last year, a
positive step as we aim to appear in The Sunday Times' Best Company to Work For list
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More than 1,600 staff were also updated on progress against the company's targets and our aims for the
future in a senes of half-day presentations led by our Executive Management Team

Our suppliers

We secured new suppliers and reviewed contracts with our existing ones to help us provide an even more
cost-effective and efficient service for our customers

This bullds on the Mult-Services Framework agreements awarded in 2009 to deliver our core utility services
between 2010 and 2015 These contracts were awarded to Clancy Docwra, Mornson Utility Services and
Barhale Trant Utilites We also have a four-year contract with Dyno-Rod following the adoption of private
sewers to our network and a Single Entity Contract (SEC) with 4Delivery for improvements to treatment works
across our region

Duning 2012-13, we awarded a contract to our key supplier Tata Consulting Services to develop and upgrade
our biling system A three-year leak detection contract was awarded to two partners, PN Daly and RPS, with
whom we developed a new and improved leakage strategy This will provide better value for our customers
and help us maintain our industry-leading record on fixing leaks

We continued our partnerstips in India, where we now have eight suppliers in 10 ciies Our main suppher in
India 1s Wipro, & leading global IT service, which prowides round the clock services for the company and
monitors our IT network and telemetry We also have Business Process Outsourcing agreements with RRD
and Wipro to provide support for our customers’ written enquines, including bithng, and also HR, finance, data
managemeni, reporting and engineernng design

We developed our engagement with our supply chain with the support of trade associations They included
British Water and the Civil Engineening Contractors Association (CECA), who are helping us gain the
maximum benefrt from our supplers to provide a better customer service

A workshop took place with 30 contract partners during National Customer Service Week to promote a
customer-centric attitude to everyone who represents our company Our contractors are encouraged to focus
on engaging with customers before and after therr work, maintaming good site management, being polite and
courteous and showing attention to detail

Woe also continued to work in partnershup with our suppliers to maintain our excellent health and safety record
and to support our community and charity intiatives
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Our community

Community campaigns
We want to play a positive role in the communities we serve and we do this through a number of inttiatives

They include our Learn to Swim scheme, which celebrated its 20" anniversary in 2012, and has helped to
teach more than 600,000 children this life-saving skill since its launch in 1992 To celebrate the anmiversary in
Olympics year, former World Champion swimmer Karen Pickenng MBE led swim clinics for aspinng future
competitors

Our two annual achiever events recognised chiidren who have shown courage and commitment m learning to
swim while our annual swimmng instructors’ seminar was attended by 145 teachers and guests The key
speaker was the head coach of Bntish swimming Bill Furniss, who coached Rebecca Adlington to Olympic
gold medal success

Duning the year, a further 38,000 children learned to swim at 85 pocls across our region The scheme, which
won the Community Inthative of the Year category in the 2012 Utility Industry Achievement Awards, i1s
sponsored by our supphers Mormson Utility Services, Clancy Docwra, Barhale Trant Utilives and 4Delivery

We continued our sponsorship of the South and South East in Bloom competiion, which received a record
329 entnies, inctuding 96 from schools The horticultural competition, which 1s championed by celebrity
gardener Chns Collins, promotes sustatnable gardening and water efficiency

Children also learned about water and water for health while keeping fit through our Sporting Chance
programme with partners Sussex Cricket Club, Kent Girls Cncket, Gillingham FC, Southampton FC,
Portsmouth FC and Bnghton and Hove Albion FC Together with our STEM {Science, Technology,
Engineenng and Maths} and Kent Walk to School projects, we reached more than 35,000 children

Lifelong learning

Education 1s at the heart of our commurnity work, particularly with young people who will become customers in
the future Many of our education imtiatives focus on water efficiency, the supply of water and how we can
protect our environment from pollution caused when fat, ol and grease are poured down drains

Following the extremes of dry and wet weather dunng the year, we updated our Waterwise community and
school talks to address the issue of more unreliable weather patterns Eighty talks were given to an audience
totalling 4,787 and 10 more of our staff were trained to join our team of volunteer speakers We also
distnbuted Waterwise activity packs and awarded badges for completing the tasks inside to 62 groups,
totalling 2,064 children

In primary schools, 4,848 children watched 29 performances of our Drips mime show, which emphasises the
importance of using water wisely In secondary schools, our award-winning Aqua Innovation programme was
delivered in 10 schools and a further 10 were recruted for the new academic year Pupils are asked to use
design, iInnovation and creativity to come up with water-saving tdeas Last year’s winners, Bitterne Park
School in Southampton, invented a device called Mr Mister, which turns a shower's water flow into a rmist for
washing and back to normal for nnsing

We took part in interactive water workshops for more than 1,000 children from 22 schools during Crawley
Junior Citizen Week A further 1,000 children learned about water efficiency at a Junior Ciizen Week In
Horsham

During the year, we recruited 20 new volunteers to become STEM (Science, Technology, Engineenng and
Maths) ambassadors to work with pupils in schools to share the skilis they use daily at work Members of staff
also signed up as volunteers with Young Enterprise, a national chanty that works with industry to inspire
young people to set up and run their own businesses
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We toured the region with our Water Café, reaching more than 14,000 people at 16 events where we gave
advice on water efficiency and the dangers of pouring fat, oIl and grease down drains

Nearly 300 children took part in nine theatrical workshops we ran in partnership with the Brighton Theatre
Royal, delivering water-saving messages in schools We also teamed up with meals-on-wheels providers to
encourage elderly people to drink more water

We worked with three other water companies to host a Climate Calm garden at the 2012 RHS Chelsea
Flower Show The garden of the future, able to cope with the extremes of weather, was featured extensively
in national and international media and seen by thousands of visitors who followed an online blog We also
launched a Wrap Up For Winter campaign in partnership with water efficiency organisation Waterwse,
Channel 4 and the Met Office

A new award-winning partnership was launched with Nickelodeon UK and GabiH20, a company established
to help deliver water efficiency messages to schoolchildren The campaign, which uses a rapping TV cartoon
camel, includes a resource kit for teachers to download so that the water cycle can be taught to Key Stage 2
children

Charity support

Southern Water has a long-standing ethos of giving back through chanty fund-raising and we raised and
distnbuted more than £190,000 to good causes during the year

The chanties we support are chosen by our staff and included the NSPCC, Macmillan Cancer Support,
Cancer Research UK, WaterAid, RNLI and Help for Heroes Locally, we supported the Air Ambulance
orgamsations, Chestnut Tree House Children’s Hospice, St Barnabas Hospice and AAIR (Asthma, Allergy
and Inflammation Research)

We raised £60,000 at cur Moulin Rouge-themed annual chanty bail, £35,000 at our sixth annual horseracing
day — which was attended by more than 4,000 people — and £11,000 at our annual WaterAud golf day All of
the events were suppaorted by our suppliers Other charity activities included Wear a Santa Swuit to Work day,
monthly Dress Down days and the inclusion of an RNLI fund-raising leaflet with our annual bills

We also made 56 small donations worth more than £9,500 to community argarisations, schools and to
support staff fund-raising intiatives

Our staff spent 308 days helping community projects as part of our Commumty Volunteering Programme The
scheme allows staff to take two days’ paid leave each year to volunteer their services for chanties, commurity
organisations or envircnmental work

Conservation

Our work to supply water and recycle wastewater i1s central to the environment and we take great care to
conserve habitats and protected species We completed a number of conservation projects durning the year,
both in partnership with specialist organisations and 1n assoctation with construction work

A £1 5 milllon scheme In Hastings, East Sussex, to prevent flooding and pollution in the Gill stream involved
tnstalling new surface water pipes and required particular care The Gill woodland supports wildliife habitats
and i1s a designated Local Nature Reserve, Site of Importance for Nature Conservation and Ancient
Woodiand OGur work, agreed with Natural England, was designed to cause mimmum disruption to the wildiife
and the pipeline route was adapted to avoid trees covered by a Tree Protection Order Some stretches were
dug by hand to avoid damaging roots

Conservation work on our own sites Is just as careful We have created protective 1slands for rare orchids,
which are flourishing on our land in ever-increasing numbers thanks to our proactive iand management and
the wet weather The rural iocation and chalky soil of many of our sites make deal habitats for bee orchids
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and we have developed a catalogue of where they are in order to ensure we maintain the land to support
them

Our Testwood Lakes site, near Southampton, 1s managed on our behalf by the Hampshire and Isle of Wight
Wildlife Trust The Trust continued to manage the woodlands, hedgerows, grasslands, lakes and ponds in the
third year of its 10-year Higher Level Stewardship scheme, promoted by Natural England The Friends of
Testwood carried out a considerable amount of the practical conservation work to improve the site, including
controling alien plants and marmtaning the sand martin bank, tern rafts, fencing and the dry and sensory
gardens Although breeding birds were affected by the wet weather, 130 species were recorded on the site,
including a record nine species of birds of prey on one day

Elsewhere, we undertake biodiversity and habitat improvement work where our operations have a negative
impact on the environment When Tilmore Brook at Petersfield in Hampshire was polluted by sewage, we
installed flow detectors and created a backwater area to provide a refuge for fish and invertebrates in dry,
summer months We also reviewed our operations to prevent environmental damage in the future

At the Knepp Castle Estate at Shipley in Sussex, we helped to plant more than 1,000 trees as part of a project
to restore one of the rarest habitats i the county We also launched a Southern Water Conservation
Volunteers’ Group to work with organisations such as the Sussex, Hampshire and Isle of Wight and Kent
wildife trusts and the Sussex Amphibian and Reptle Group Projects will include cleanng invasive species
from riverbanks, coppicing woodland, carrying out beach cleans and conducting surveys

During the drought, water conservation was especially important and we teamed up with Medway Council in
Kent to reuse water to nurture plants and trees The water was used dunng our Chatham mains replacement
scheme, which invalved disinfecting pipes in chlorinated water Instead of being wasted, the water was
collected by the councll and used for watenng

Water butts were given to community groups to support conservation projects as part of our on-going
campaign run in partnership wath Eco-Faith and the Wildfowl and Wetland Trust Arundel Wetland Centre,
adding up to savings of 25,000 hitres of water

Our work to consider our neighbours, the environment and our staff at construction sites was again
recognised in Considerate Constructors Scheme National Site Awards Six of our sites were given awards,
including our £300 milkon scheme to bring cieaner seas to East Sussex

Access and recreation

Hundreds of thousands of visitors enjoy the great outdoors each year at Southern Water sites and learn more
about water, wildlife and the environment

Bewl Water in Kent 1s the largest reservoir in the South East and hosts a range of recreation and leisure
activites More than 150,000 people visit the reservorr each year to take part in activities such as windsurfing,
sailing, fishing, cycling and walking Dunng 2012, we produced a new visitor information leaflet In conjunction
with South East Water, which also takes water from the reservorr

Our Testwood Lakes site in Hampshire is popular with schools, community groups, walkers, birdwatchers and
nature-lovers About 25,000 people are estimated to have visited the Lakes dunng the year with more than
3,000 children and adults taking part in education programmes and sessions The education centre extended
its opening hours to include every Saturday and Sunday afternoon while access to it was supported by
planning permission to lay a tarmac path from the main visitors’ car park and the installation of a Mobility
Buggy store

Car parks, walks and outdoor activities are also available at our Darwell and Powdermill Reservors in East
Sussex, while fishing, salling and a Millennium Walk can be enjoyed by visitors to Weir Wood Reservoir i
Woest Sussex
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Visitors can see water hentage pumping machinery, cared for and displayed by Brede Steam Engine Society,
at our water treatment works at Brede in East Sussex The society opens the museum on the first Saturday of
the month for enthusiasts to learn about steam power

Our waterworks site at Twyford, near Winchester, 1s home to an Edwardian pumping statron and 1s also open
to visitors on certain days of the year

Our tours of the Victorian sewer network in Brighton continued to be popular with more than 1,500 people
taking part dunng the year The tours offer a unigue glimpse into an otherwise unseen subterranean world
built 150 years ago Online booking was introduced as part of our new sewer tours website, which attracted
more than 8,000 hits duning its first season

Above ground, we joined forces with Visit Kent, Thanet District Council and local businesses to promote the
area’'s beaches and extend the tradittonal tounsm season We supported a sernies of community events and
Active Coast, a campaign to bring visitors to the area to take part in sports, cycling and walking

Pupils from 10 schools in our region enjoyed educational tours of our water treatment works and meter
installation sites to find out where water they use comes from The trips were part of their participation tn our
Aqua Innovation education programme for secondary schools

A disused country footpath was given a new lease of life at Otterbourne in Hampshire The path, which runs
along the perimeter of our offices and down to the River ltchen, was renovated as part of a project to
commemorate the Queen’s Diamond Jubilee
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Financial performance

Financial performance
Accounting policles

The accounting policies of the company, which are consistent with the prior year, are set out on pages 70 to
74

Profit and loss account

The profit and loss account of Scuthern Water Services Ltd 1s summarnised in Table 1 below

Table 1 Years ended 31 March ‘ Change

2013 2012 %
£m £m

Turnover 778.7 716 2 87
Operating costs {239.4) {240 6) {05)
Depreciation {213.4) (204 1) 46
Other iIncome 5.1 01 -
Operating profit 331.0 2716 219
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 10 12 (16 7)
Net interest {152.9) (187 9) (18 6)
Profit before tax 1791 849 1110
Tax (22.2) (5 0) 3440
Profit after tax 156.9 799 96 4

Turnover increased by 8 7 per cent to £778 7 million (2011-12 £716 2 million) principally because of the
average tanff increase on metered and unmetered income of 8 § per cent as a result of the annual RPI
increase of 5 2 per cent at November 2011 together with the K factor allowed by Ofwat of 3 6 per cent Water
consumption during the year fell by approximately four per cent as a result of the hosepipe restrictions that
were put in place in Apnl 2012 as a consequence of the drought and also the wet weather that was
subsequently experienced over the summer The lower consumption reduced iIncome by approximately £12
million and this reduction was largely offset by income from properties previously believed to be empty and for
which occupiers have now been identified and charged

Operating costs reduced by 0 5 per cent to £239 4 mitlion (2011-12 £240 6 million) and the major reasons for
this movement of £1 2 million are explained in Table 2
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Table 2

increase/(decrease) in operating costs £m
Inflation 98
High ground water fevels {tankenng and pumping) 32
Power consumption — drought and water volumes 31
Compliance related costs 34
Pension curtaliment {9 0)
Targeted efficiencies (117)
Movement in operating costs (1.2)

The targeted efficiencies have been achieved through business process reviews, contract renegotiations and
a focus on maintaining tight budgetary controls This includes reducing the work i1ssued to external contractors
through more efficient use of our own internal resources and reduced chemical usage

During 2012-13, we undertook a comprehensive review and consuitation process relating to the final salary
pension scheme, which resulted in the implementation of significant changes to the scheme to ensure its
long-term sustainability This resulted in a non-cash curtaitment gain of £9 milion in 2013

Depreciation increased by 4 6 per cent to £213 4 milion (2011-12 £204 1 millon} as a result of the continuing
significant capital iInvestment programme and an increase in the infrastructure renewal charge, reflecting the
greater level of capitat expenditure on infrastructure assets

Other iIncome increased by £5 0 million for services provided in the disposal of an investment in Veolia Water
Southeast Lid held by another group company

Operating profit for 2012-13 increased to £331 0 mullion (2011-12 £271 6 milhon), a 21 9 per cent
improvement as a result of the factors set out above

The profit on disposal of fixed assets of £1 0 millon (2041-12 £1 2 milhon) mainly relates to the sale of land
and buildings surplus to operational requirements

Net interest payable of £152 9 mithon reduced by 18 6 per cent (2011-12 £187 9 milion) This reduction
principally related to lower non-cash interest associated with inflation on index-linked bonds as a result of
lower RP| applicable during 2012-13 It also includes reductions in interest payable following the repayment of
part of the preference shares offset by an increase in the non-cash financing charge on the pension deficit

The tax on ordinary activittes of £22 2 mithon (2011-12 £5 0 mullion) reflects the increase i profit before tax
and the impact of changes made to the future taxation rate on the deferred tax hability as described in note 8

The profit after taxation for the year amounted to £156 9 milion (2011-12 £79 9 million)
Cash flow statement

Net cash inflow from operating activities increased to £499 8 million for 2012-13 from £487 1 mullion in 2011-
12 This increase manly reflects the higher operating profit as described above offset by an increase in
working capital The increase in working capital was expected and 1s mainly attributable to the increase in
turnover (which increases the value of debt relating to any current year), the roll out of our metering
programme (which delays the timing of billing to customers compared with unmetered customers) and an
outstanding payment in respect of the disposal of its investment in Veoha Water Southeast Ltd

The net cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance increased to £81 8 million for 2012-
13 from £80 7 milhon in 2011-12 Ths increase results from lower nterest recevable on cash balances and
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additional interest payable, which anses from the impact of inflation on the underlying nominal values of a
number of our loans

A tax payment of £13 7 million (2011-12 £14 8 mithon} was made to Southern Water Services Group (SWSG)
as group relief for taxable losses This, together with the intenm dividend of £43 2 million (2011-12 £42 1
million), 1s offset by interest received from SWSG of £56 9 million (2011-12 £56 9 million) No other ordinary
dividends were declared or paid during the year

The outfiow of cash relating to the purchase of tangible fixed assets was £360 1 million (2011-12 £466 0
milion) The reduction in cash outflow results from the tuming of the overall capital programme, with the
biggest reductions being the completion of projects to improve water quality in 2011-12 and the completion of
major construction In refation to our Brighton and Hove project which 1s now being commissioned

The net cash outflow before financing in 2012-13 was £215 4 million (2011-12 £127 1 million)

In preparation for the refinancing of the Class B £250 0 million loan in March 2014, a new bond for £250 0
mullion was 1ssued in March 2013 This new bond, along with the drawdown of an existing capital facility of
£50 0 million to support the financing of the capital programme and the repayment of part of the mezzanine
debt, £15 4 million, resulted in a net cash inflow from financing of £279 9 million (2011-12 £30 5 million)

Balance sheet

At the end of the year to 31 March 2013, we had fixed assets of £4,293 5 million (2011-12 £4,138 7 million),
an increase of £154 8 million from March 2012 This increase largely results from capital investment of
£380 0 million offset by depreciation of £216 2 million

Following the new bond 1ssue in March 2013, the £250 0 mulllon funds raised were fransferred to Southern
Water Services (Finance) Ltd in preparation for the repayment of the Class B £250 0 million loan As a result,
debtors falling due within one year mncreased from £163 5 million to £416 6 mithon at 31 March 2013
Creditors falling due within one year increased to £505 9 muthon from £250 6 million to reflect the timing of the
Class B loan repayment

As at 31 March 2013, creditors falling due after one year increased by £101 0 million to £3,767 5 milhon This
increase principally resulted from inflation on index-linked bonds of £77 5 million together with the drawdown
of an existing capital faciity of £50 0 million offset by the repayment of an inter-company creditor

The net pension deficit increased in value to £72 1 milhion (2011-12 £69 7 milhion) following the latest
actuarial valuation, as descrnbed in note 22

QOverall net assets increased from £806 7 million to £914 3 miliion
Dividend policy
Dividends are proposed with due regard to the following constraints

Assessment of headroom under debt covenants

Assessment of the impact on the Company's credit rating

Assessment of the iquidity position and ability to fulfil hicence conditions
Assessment of key areas of business nsk

Assessment of current year and cumulative distnbutable reserves

Directors duties under law and Ofwat administered regulatory arrangements

DA WN -

Distribution proposals submitted to the Board will also include an assessment of our performance against the
business plan, including expected performance over the balance of the regulatory perod

These tests are not applied to the intenm dividends paid to SWSG as the dividend payment 1s instantly offset
by a corresponding interest receipt from SWSG
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No other ordinary dividend was paid or declared in relation to 2012-13 (2011-12 nil), and no dividends were
paid to the shareholders of our ulbtmate parent company Greensands Holdings Limited

Taxation

Since privatisation in 1989 there has been a requirement for large capital Investment programmes in order to
upgrade our asset base and invest in improvements to our environment As a result the taxable profits are
lower than the accounting profits due to capital allowances ansing from this capital programme

We continue to pay business rates, environmental charges, PAYE and National Insurance on employees’
salanes and these amounted to £52 7 million in 2012-13 QOur expenditure with suppliers and contractors also
generates a substantial amount of tax revenues in the wider economy

Financial KPIs

Under our financial debt structure, there are a comprehensive set of covenanted financial ratios Of these,
there are two key ratios, namely the ratio of net debt to Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) and the ratio of
adjusted cash income to net interest cost

The net debt used In the net debt RCV ratio is calculated from our Regulatory Accounts as short and long-
term semor borrowings, less cash and short-term deposits The RCV for each year 1s set by Ofwat for five-
year periods at periodic reviews and reflects forecast growth in the asset base It s adjusted at each penodic
review for any out-performance, shortfalls in outputs or permitted additional investment and for certain asset
disposals The ratio of senior debt to RCV 1s targeted to be mantamed at below 85 per cent, in hne with our
debt covenants

Senior adjusted cash interest cover (measured as net cash inflow from operating activities less Current Cost

Depreciation and the Infrastructure Renewals Charge, to senior debt interest) is targeted to be maintained
above 1 1 imes, to meet covenanted levels

Net debt: RCV Y% Senior adjusted cash interest cover

2009-10 performance 80 2009-10 performance 15
2010-11 performance 81 2010-11 performance 14
2011-12 performance 81 2011-12 performance 16
2012-13 performance 79 2012-13 performance 15
Covenanted lock-up level <85 Minimum target trigger levei 11
Creataing |
Moody's corporate Baa2
family rating (negative outlook)
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Capital structure
Why Southern Water raises finance

Significant capital investment programmes have been a feature of Southern Water’s business since
privatisation in 1989 We have invested in both maintaining our asset base and constructing new assets to
improve the environmental quality of wastewater, improve the qualty of drinking water and accommodate
population growth in our area of operation As an example, pnor to pnvatisation, wastewater discharged into
our coastal waters was untreated, but the ptanned completion of our £300 millon Cieaner Seas for Sussex
scheme in 2013 will mark the conclusion of a programme of capital investment to fully treat wastewater of the
coastal towns and cities from Kent to Hampshire and the Isle of Wight

We raise new finance to pay for the construction of new assets As a shareholder-owned company, we are
Incentivised to drive efficiency and have shareholder equity to absorb financial nsk and contnbute to financing
the construction of new assets New finance 15 also required to repay loans taken out in previous years

The level of customer charges 1s set to cover our operating expenditure, our annual financing costs (including
dividend to our shareholders) and the amount required to maintain our assets, such as water pipes, sewers,
pumping stations and treatment works

The charts below ifllustrate expected cash flows for the current regulatory penod from Apnl, 2010 to March,
2015 The data 1s based upon the regulatory pnce determmation, which sets out our abligations and hmuts for
customer charges for this current five-year pnce period

Cash in Cash out
1%

24%

B8 Operational costs

W ) Capital expenditure

1 Finance
76%

] Customer B Working capital

B Tax

7 Finance

Capital structure and borrowing covenants

We refinanced our regulated business in 2003 with the aim of reducing our cost of capital and gaining access
to long-term secure sources of finance This was achieved by replacing a short-term parent company loan
with a long-term framework for sustainable future financing

Qur financing subsidiary Southern Water Services (Finance) (SWSF) was established for the express
purpose of raising finance on our behalf The Southern Water Financing Group {(see ownership chart below)
was also established at that tme to create a financial nng-fence to protect our ongoing operation The
immediate parent company of the financing group 15 Southern Water Services Group (SWSG)

The financing group also provides secunty to finance providers in the form of a charge over the share capital
of SWS Group Holdings (SWSGH) No secunty 1s provided over our individual regutated operating assets
This structure ensures that, in the unlikely event that either Southern Water or SWSF were to default on its
debt obligations, we will continue to operate our business as usual Debt providers are not permitted to either
break up or interrupt our business and are therefore likely to look for a new owner of the financing group to
recover their debt in the unhkely event of default
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In 2003, a Common Terms Agreement (the CTA) between the members of the financing group and its debt
investors was established The CTA set out arrangements for the ongoing management of our debt 1Issuance
programme and sets out a number of operating arrangements in order to mmimise financial risk and adhere to
good industry practice

One of the CTA arrangementis i1s a imit on the indebtedness of Southern Water and SWSF This imit includes
precautionary ‘early warning' mits, which prevent us from paying dividends We ensure that we operate with

sufficient financial headroom agatnst these imits and have not breached a imit at any time since the 2003
refinancing

Southern Water ownership structure
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SWS Holdmgs

Southern Water Serwces

t Pension trustee companies :

Greensands Holdings 1s the ultimate parent company of Southern Water and all other group companies, with
no minonty interests A number of Greensands companies were set up to finance the acquisition of the share
capital of Southern Water Capital (SWC) from the Royal Bank of Scotland in October 2007 (investing £1 9
bithon of equity and debt to finance the acquisition) The shareholders of Greensands Holdings are a
consortium of infrastructure funds and pension companies, with no single shareholder having majonty control
The principal investors are Australian pension funds, a fund advised by JP Morgan Asset Management and a
fund advised by UBS Global Asset Management

f Southern Water Services (Finance)

Shareholders of Greensands Holdings are represented on our Board through two of six non-executive ‘
directors The other four non-executive directors are independent of the shareholders The remaining
directors are a non-executive Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer Find out
mare about them on page 53
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Our Chairman is also independent Chairman of the Greensands Holdings Board, which meets four times a
year No other independent members of our Board sit on the Board of Greensands Holdings

All companies within the Greensands Holdings group of companies are UK resident for tax, with all profits and
losses fathng within the UK tax junisdiction

How we finance the business

Note 16 to the financial statements provides an analysis of our outstanding debt at 31 March 2013 and 31
March 2012 The majority of our loans are stering bonds issued and listed on the UK Stock Exchange The
regulatory framework, under which revenues and the RCV are indexed, exposes us to inflation nsk This risk
15 managed through the use of index-linked loans and denvatives within the overall debt portfolio (note 16)

We are not restncted to 1ssuing sterling bonds, but will ensure that any other currency loans are fully hedged
back to sterling We aiso hedge our exposure by ensuring that at least 85 per cent of our outstanding debt
lrabiities (in respect of Class A and Class B debt) is either index-linked or fixed rate for the current regulatory
penod and at least 70 per cent in the next penod (on a rolling basis)

We also consider refinancing risk by ensuring that loan matunties are not concentrated in any single year or
regulatory period When 1ssuing new loans, we test that refinancing obligations are less than 20 per cent of
RCV in any two consecutive years and 40 per cent of RCV within any five-year regulatory period The
maturity profile of loans range from within one year to March 2056, which ensures we comfortably meet this
test

Southern Water ensures that sufficient hiquidity {cash and committed bank facilities) 1s in place to fund the
business for at least the next 12 months, an important consideration given that we have negative cash flow
generation in the majonty of years as a result of our ongoing capital Investment programme

Duning the year ended 31 March 2013, SWSF 1ssued a £250 million sterling bond listed on the UK Stock
Exchange and we also increased a bank loan from £100 muihion to £150 million while extending the term of
the loan to June 2017 The £250 million proceeds of the new bond 1ssue will be used to repay an existing loan
due in March 2014 and has been deposited with SWSF so that the cash is available to repay the maturing
loan The additional £50 millron loan proceeds will be used to invest in the construction of new assets

We also maintain a £200 mitlion committed bank credit facility, which 1s used as a hquidity buffer and was
undrawn at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012

As a result of our hquidity policy, SWS can have large cash balances We reduce the risk of losing cash on
deposit, from bank or fund failure, by setting maximum imits on cash deposits with any bank or fund Banks
must have, as a minimum, a credit rating of P1 {Moody's), A1 {(Standard & Poor) or F1 (Fitch) Funds must be
AAA rated These are the most secure ratings

In addition to our loans {anatysed in note 16), we have a loan of £812 3 million that was issued to SWSG as
part of the refinancing in 2003 (note 14) We receive £56 9 million annual interest on this loan, which is
finranced by dividend and tax payments we make to SWSG For the year ended 31 March 2013, the dividend
was £43 2 million and the tax payment, for the taxable losses at SWSG, amounted to £13 7 muilion This loan
provides no tax benefit to either us or the Greensands Group, with the tax payment from Southern Water to
SWSG simply negating any tax effect of this loan This 1s illustrated in figure 1 below

The Greensands companies also have their own loans a UK listed bond and bank loan 1ssued by Southern
Water Greensands (Financing) (SWGF}, represented in the tables as Greensands financing companies, and
Eurobonds 1ssued by Greensands Europe The UK listed bond and bank debt issued by SWGF result in tax
deductions which can be used within the Greensands Holdings group of companies All companies within the
Greensands Holdings group are UK tax resident and form a single ‘family’ of companies for UK tax purposes

Figure 2 below highlights cash flow movements between Southem Water and the Greensands Holdings
group of companies for 2012-13
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Interest and dividends payments 2012-13

Figure 1 Figure 2 i) Dvidends to investors (EN1)
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&) Drrdend pard by SWS o SWSG.

) Payment of proop tax relief by SWS for tie xable fosses &t SWSE

o) indzrost payments from SWS b SWSF on the laans taken ot by SWSF on bahat! of SWS, Tus rs then used by SWSF to gay the sitarest on these external loans.
e} Repayment of the mezzamne debt (see note 16) and associated wrterast and miterest paymants on the preference sharex.
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1) Extermal interest payaide, funded from interest recervable, koan repayments and cash held i tho Greansands financing companses.

i} No dindentds wero patd (o yrvastors.
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Risks

In order to provide a relable and consistent service for our customers, It 1s important we recognise and
monitor nsks to our business

We ensure controls are in place so we can take action to minimise the impact of these nsks To do this, we
manage risks through a central database where they are ranked and assigned to a senior manager who 1S
responsible for implementing mitigation plans

Risks are reviewed each month and the highest are escalated to our Executive Management Team, the
Board and the Audit and Risk Review Committee Any new nsks added to the database with a score above a
certain level are passed to a director and Chief Executive Officer for immediate review Key risks during the
year included

Regulatory reform: Duning the last two years, there has been a significant focus on reform wathin the water
industry This has included the Government's Water White Paper and Ofwat's Future Price Limits, which
focus on changes to the way customer prices are set, the introduction of competition and a greater use of
market mechamsms to promote innovation and efficiency Our economic regulator, Ofwat, 1s continuing to
review and revise the regulatory regime to ensure 1t 1s fit for the challenges of the future, including changes fo
water company licences

Mitigation: We have continued to engage constructively with Ofwat and Defra on the proposals for reform
We are also working with Water UK tc ensure that any changes deliver better, more effective, regulation in
the interests of our customers and the business An example during the year was a proposal by Ofwat to
make changes to water company licences Followtng substantial and positive dialogue with Ofwat, a
satisfactory agreement was reached that provided the flexability for Ofwat to review price imits and reduced
uncertainties for water companies, which had been greater in earher proposals

Future price limits: The process for Ofwat's 2014 Periodic Review began in 2011-12  This will determine
price limits for the penod 2015 to 2020 The review I1s significantly changed with the introduction of separate
price controls for retail and wholesale services We will be submitting our final Business Plan to Ofwat in
December 2013 Failure by Ofwat to recognise significant investment needs or other major 1ssues included
within the plan may lead to a shortfall in funding for the regulatory period

Mitigation: We are completing extensive development work, including substantial consultation with
customers, to produce a robust Business Plan  Our plan will be reviewed by our independent Customer
Chaltenge Group and subjected to assurance testing We have responded to all Ofwat’s consultattons on
price review methodology and will maintain close dialogue with Ofwat and other regulators on key i1ssues

Compliance with legislation. Southern Water 1s a highly regulated business with three main regulators
Ofwat, the Environment Agency and the Dnnking Water Inspectorate If we do not meet the regulations set by
these bodies, the company could face penalties during the five-year price review that sets our levels of
investment and customer bills We could also face fines, legal action and, in the worst case scenario, the loss
of our appointment as a water and wastewater company

Mitigation: \We have procedures in place to comply with legislation and key procedures have been certified to
meet standards, including ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 Awareness training i1s provided throughout the company
for critical 1ssues, such as the Bribery Act and Competition Law, to ensure everyone understands our legal
obhigations All sections of the business review theirr comphiance with company procedures through self-
assessment every six months and implement improvement plans If necessary

Operational failures and potlution incidents. Rehable water and wastewater services are essential to
maintain public health and protect the environment Operational failures can lead to interruptions to drninking
water supplies, nsks to heaith or severe damage to the environment from pollution As well as the risk of
damage to the environment or distress to customers, incidents like these can also affect our performance
rating with Ofwat, lead to prosecution and fines by the Environment Agency or the Drinking Water
Inspectorate and cause damage to our reputation
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Mitigation: The majonty of our £1 8 billion capital investment programme from 2010-15 1s targeted to
maintain our water and wastewater sites and networks to reduce the nsk of fallure and incidents We have
response teams on standby to make sure, if there are problems, we can mimmise the impact to our
customers and the environment

Resilience to drought. The South East 1s classified as an area of severe water stress and changing weather
patterns are predicted to pose an increasing challenge for all water companies in the region in future years
Southern Water supphies drinking water to more than one million households across Kent, Sussex, Hampshire
and the Isle of Wight and 1t 1s cniical we are able to develop a resilient network to continue to do so now and
in the future

Mitigation: We have secured extra water resources through our new River Arun reservorr in West Sussex to
achieve our target for the Securnty of Supply Index in the region We have also continued to drive down
leakage below our company target and are on track to install water meters for the majonty of our customers
by 2015, supported by a wide range of water efficiency inihatives Should a drought occur, as in 2012, we
have a Drought Plan which we follow to introduce measures to conserve water and secure additional
resources through Drought Permits and Drought Orders and by changing the way in which we operate our
sources During the year, we also updated our Water Resources Management Plan, using an industry-leading
approach that atlows us to plan for a wider range of droughts than we have seen in the past

Preventing flooding of our sites and from our network: Changing ramfall patterns, more frequent storms
and rising sea levels, could all lead to an increased risk of flooding The serous floods in recent years have
also highlighted the need to protect our water and wastewater treatment works and pumping statrons from
being put out of action in floods

Mitigation: To help combat this increased nsk, we are investing neary £90 million in flood protection
schemes between 2010 and 2015 to increase the capacity of our sewer network by 20 per cent This
Includes £20 mithon on sewer improvements i Portsmouth to help protect the city from flood damage during
storm condibions after it was extensively damaged in a storm in 2000 Nearly £10 million 1s also being
invested in updating sewer plans, computer models and drainage area plans to look at how our network can
cope with changing weather :n the future and how we can reduce the rnisk of flooding to homes and gardens

Regional growth' The population in the South East has grown considerably duning the last 20 years and s
expected to grow by a further 16 per cent between 2010 and 2030 The populations of Portsmouth and the
Iste of Wight are forecast to be the fastest growing This presents significant challenges because our region
has Increasingly scarce water resources, many environmentally important areas and a densely populated
coastline, which will require higher standards of protection

Mitigation: We need to ensure we can supply enough drinking water to cater for a growing population and
that we have enough capacity at our wastewater treatment works and in our water mains and sewer network
to cope with the extra flows We continually review population forecasts as part of our forward planming in our
five-year Business Plan and our 25-year Water Resources Management Plan While the current economic
conditrons have resulted in a decline in the housing market, we expect papulation will increase in line with
forecasts By 2020, we anticipate housing development will have started to grow again Our future investment
plans are developed in consultation with developers and local planners to make sure we have the necessary
infrastructure in place to cater for new developments

Bad debt: Levels of bad debt, which cannot be recovered and have to be written off as a loss, continue to be
a significant 1ssue for the water industry In the current economic cimate, there 1s a nisk that the number of
customers who do not pay their bills will increase This puts an additional burden on customers who do pay
their bills

Mitigatron.: \We understand that some customers may expenence financial difficulttes, particularly in these
difficult economic imes We encourage customers who are struggling to make payments to contact our Debt
Advice Centre as early as possible We offer a range of flexible instaiment plans and tanffs and also refer
those in severe financial hardship to our Chantabie Trust, which can give grants As part of our metering
programme, we can offer water and energy audits in the customer's home to help them make savings and a
free referral to the community organisation IncomeMAX, which can ensure households are receiving all the
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benefits and grants they are entitled to We are proactive in collecting payment from our customers and in
helping households to pay their bills and debt When necessary, we also utilise a leading debt management
system to recover overdue payments to keep bad debt to a minimum

Financing our business- Significant change in interest rates or a reduction in the availability of credit to the
water industry could put our ability to finance our capita! investment programme at nsk in the future The
industry requires on-going access to capital markets because of negative cash flows, which have been a
feature of the water industry since it was privatised in 1989 As a minimum, we intend to maintain our current
nsk profile We only enter into treasury transactions to manage inherent risk and support prudent funding, not
to speculate

Mitigation: We ensure that we maintain sufficient cash reserves and iquidity facilities to finance our
operations for at least 12 months We also ensure the aggregate nominal value of debt matunties does not
exceed 40 per cent of Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) in any single regulatory penod (and 20 per cent of
RCV in any 24 months) Exposure to interest rate nises on our current borrowings 1s also hedged by a
subsidary company, Scuthern Water Services (Finance) Limited, and current borrowings are at either fixed
rates or index-linked Our next debt matunty 1s on March 31, 2014, and we have already raised the finance to
ensure we are able to repay this loan We ensure that sufficient funds are available for our operational and
capital investment programme through on-going monitoring and forecasting of our cash flow and we take
steps to manage this when necessary

Credit ratings: We need to maintain an investment grade credit rating to ensure we can continue to access
the capital markets to efficiently finance our capital investment programme and refinance our existing debt
maturities This 1s required as a condition of our regulatory licence and it 1s also a pnmary duty of Ofwat to
ensure we can finance our business In addition, it1s a condition of borrowing covenants, where a failure to
maintam certain credit ratings could lead to a restriction in dividend payments Our current credit ratings are

» Standard & Poor's Class A debt, A- (negative outlook), Class B debt, BBB (negative outloak)

» Fitch Class A debt, A-, Class B debt, BBB

»  Moeody's Class A debt, Baal (negative outlook), Class B debt, Ba1 (negative outlook), Corporate
family rating Baa2 (negative outiook)

Mitigation: \We have an internal business plan which 1s expected to stabiise our overall credit rating position
A primary duty of Ofwat when setting prices Is to ensure companies can finance therr business If necessary,
a company can apply to reset customer prices during the five-yearly reguiatory pertods through an Interim
Determination of K (IDoK)

Delivery of our capital investment programme. We have a capital investment programme of £1 8 bition
between 2010 and 2015 We are on target to deliver this, and some schemes are ahead of schedule,
however, we have to conbnue our focus to complete all our work on time If we are unable to deliver
significant parts of the programme on schedule, we face a nisk to our ability to provide the best service we can
for our customers, and possible action by the Environment Agency, Drinking Water inspectorate or Ofwat

Mitigation: We closely monitar the progress of our programme to ensure we manage any nsks to completing
the work on time We work closely with our regulators and other interested parties to resolve 1ssues as they
arnise
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Corporate Governance

Chairman’s overview
Introduction

Southern Water 1s committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance The directors have
taken account of the principles of good governance in the UK Corporate Governance Code and have recently
taken further steps to ensure the code’s requirements are met appropriately for our privately owned company
As a Board, we are responsible and accountable to stakeholders for ensuring effective governance processes
are In place and followed

The Board'’s role 15 to

= Ensure that the company’s obhgations to, and interests of, its stakeholders, including customers and
regulators, are known and met appropnately

* Provide effective ieadership and collective responsibility for the long-term success of the company, to
the benefit of its stakeholders

» Determine overall strategic aims and direction

* Ensure that sufficient resources are available to the Chief Executive Officer and his team to operate,
manage and develop the business approprately

= Ensure that appropnate and effective processes and controls are in place to assess and manage nsk

Board membership

During the year under review, | have been the independent non-executive Chairman, and the Board has also
comprised two executive directors, (the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer) and six non-
executive directors, of whom four are independent

| believe that we comprise a balanced and rounded board, giving independent support and advice as well as
providing new ideas and healthy challenge The presence of six non-executive directors provides appropriate
governance The members of the Board, their biographies and descriptions of therr complementary skills and
extensive experience are on pages 53 to 55

All members of the Board are able to aliocate the necessary time to the company and its areas of business to
discharge their responsibilities effectively

Chairman

As Charman, my role is to lead the Board in its shared responsibilities, to encourage and facilitate the
contributions of its members and to ensure adherence to the governance pnnciples and processes of the
Board

| discuss and agree agendas for Board meetings with the Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary,
although any director may sponsor an item to be included on the agenda | have authority to act and speak for
the Board between its meetings, including engaging with the Chief Executive Officer | report to the Board,
chairmen of its committees and individual directors as appropriate on decisions and actions taken between
meetings of the Board | also meet with the non-executive directors, without the executive directors present, to
consider the performance of the executive directors and to provide feedback

Two investors, but not all, are represented on the Board, and | ensure that the views of all investors can be
communicated to the Board
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Senior Independent Non-executive Director

David Golden 1s the senior independent non-executive director He chairs the Remuneration Committee, 1s a
member of the Audit and Risk Review Committee and would chair Board meetings in the event that | am
unable to do so for any reason Dawid has been a non-executive director for nine years and the Board
recognises that his character and judgement show him to be independent He is avallable to discuss matters
or concerns with investors as required

Iindependent Non-executive Directors

The four independent non-executive directors are valued members of the Board As well as meeting the
company’s obligation 1n its icence to have independent non-executive directors, they bring overall
independent advice, review and challenge on behaif of alt stakeholders, including customers The
independent non-executive directors have been appointed for ther individual external expertise and
experience in specific areas, such as customer service, the environment, operations, procurement and
finance, and for the range of their experience of general corporate management They meet without me at
least once a year, and appraise my performance annually

The Board considers the four iIndependent non-executive directors to be independent in character and
Jjudgement and persons of standing with relevant expenence, collectively having connections with, and
knowledge of, the company’s area and understanding of the interests of our customers and how these can be
respected and protected

The standard terms and conditions of the independent non-executive directors are published on our website

investor-nominated Non-executive Directors

The two investor-norminated non-executive directors bring the extensive knowledge, skills and resources of
therr nominating investors and employers, as well as thewr own personal skills, expenence and knowledge of
businesses and business sectors similar to our own They have all the duties, obligations and nights of a
director of Southern Water They do not recewve any remuneration from this company

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer, Matthew Wright, 1s a member of the Board and has al! of the responsibiliies of a
director of the company In his executive role, responsibility has been delegated to him to achieve the
company’s strategy He 1s empowered to take all decisions and actions that further the company’s strategy
and which, In his jJudgement, are reasonable within the Chief Executive Officer’s imits set out in the
company’s internat controls The non-executive directors, led by me, appraise hus performance annually

Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Financial Officer, Michael Carmedy, 1s a member of the Board and has all of the responsibilities of
a director of the company In his executive role and reporting to Matthew Wnght, he has the responsibility to
manage the company’s financial affars and assist the Chief Executive Officer in the delivery of the company’s
strategy His executive performance I1s reviewed annually by Matthew Wright

Executive Management Team

Reporting to Matthew Wright, the Executive Management Team supports him in driving the implementation of
strategy in the company The team 15 commutted to do this in a responsible way that takes account of our
commitment to our customers, the environment, the communities in which we live and work and all of our
other stakeholders and with a view towards the long-term responsible stewardship of the business
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Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the adwvice and services of the Company Secretary and General Counsel, Kevin
Hall, and the Company Secretanat team The Company Secretary 1s responsibte for ensuring that the Board
operates In accordance with the governance framework it has adopted and that there are good information
flows to the Board and its committees and between senior executives and the non-executive directors The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary 1s reserved to the Board

Director induction, training and development

On appoaintment to the Board, a director will discuss and agree induction coverage and then an approprate
comprehensive and indwidualised induction pack 1s provided, which wili include information on the company
and holding group structure, the regulatory framework of the company’s business, customer service and the
operation of assets, strategic plans, financial reports, business plans and our governance framework This
and further relevant information 1s summarnsed in a directors’ handbook

Meetings are arranged wath members of the Executive Management Team and with external adwvisers, who
provide support to the relevant Board committees the directors may serve on, as well as visits to operational
and office sites

Directors receive updates through the year on matters such as the impacts of the proposals on changes to
the regulatory framework, the Government's White Paper Water for Life and the next regulatory Price Review
2014 {(PR14) They also have access to professional development provided by external bodies and our
specialist advisers

Performance and effectiveness reviews

In April 2012, | launched a review of the effectiveness of the Board, which began with each member and
those of our holding company board completing a questionnaire This enabled me to have subsequent one-
to-one discussions with each of them No areas of major concern or weakness were dentfied, but | have
been able to intiate improvements in some areas of information provision and discussion and to further
strengthen governance | shall carry out another evaluation during 2013

Led by Dawvid Golden, Senior Independent Non-executive Director, the Board recently completed a review and
appraisal of my performance as Chairman, without my participation

Board operation

There 1s good understanding of the prninciples and processes in place regarding the tasks and activities of the
Board, the authonty delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the relationship between us

The following matters are routingly determined by the Board

Bustness strategy

Financing strategy

Business plans

Approval of annual budgets

Fixing of pnincipat charges and charges schemes

Approval of financial statements

Key regulatory submisstons (including, but not imited to, Price Review submissions to Ofwat, Intenim
Determination of K applicatons, Risk and Comphance Statement and Regulatory Financial
Statemenis)

Key customer and stakeholder publications (including, but not imited to, the Annual Report)

Entering into significant contracts or commitments (including capital schemes over £5 million and
disposals over £1 million), in accordance with rules agreed with the Chief Financial Officer

s Approval of dividends

s Commencing into new businesses
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Appointment of auditor

Appointment and remuneration of independent non-executive directors
Appointment or removal of the Company Secretary

Amendment, qualfication, addition to or remaoval from the above

T 8 ® @

Good governance requires a clear division of responsibilities between the Charman and Chief Executive
Officer A statement of these responsibilities 1s published on our website

Board meetings

The Board held 10 scheduled monthly meetings dunng the year The agenda and papers are sent to Board
members 1n advance of each meeting The monthly financial, performance and economic regulation reports
are also distributed for the other two months when there 1s no scheduled meeting (August and December)
The Board holds its meetings at its prnincipal office in Worthing, but at least two meetings each year are held
at other locations following visits to company sites and at least two meetings each year are held in London, to
faciitate meetings with investors

Additionally, ad hoc Board meetings were held to consider the section 13 notices 1ssued by Ofwat to bring
about modifications to Conditions of the Licence Informal meetings of Board members also took place 1o
discuss matters, such as the section 13 notices and PR14 Ofwat consultations

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and are able to take appropriate
independent professional advice for the performance of their duties Where a director has a concern over any
unresolved matter, he/she 1s entitled to require the Company Secretary to record that concern in the minutes

of a meeting Should the director later resign over the tssue, |, as Chairman, will bring it to the attention of the
Board

Attendance at scheduled Board
meetings in 2012-13

Colin Hood 1010

Robert Armstrong 9/10 Cheryl Black 10/10
Michael Carmedy 10/10 Dawvid Golden 10710
Robert Jennings {(appointed 1 July 2012) 717 Matthew Wright 10/10
Paul Moy 9110 Surinder Toor 5/10
Bronte Somes (as alternate) 1710 Peter Antolik (as alternate) 5M10

Note — Attendance includes personal attendance and attendance by telephone
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Board committees

We have established standing committees of the Board with specific responsibilities They assist by
monitoring and reviewing performance and i1ssues in the areas within their respective scopes and by adwvising
and making recommendations to the Board Specific responsibidities have been delegated to those
committees

The standing committees of the Board that met in 2012-13 are
= Audit and Risk Review
*  Health and Safety
*  Remuneration (formerly Compensation and Human Resources in 2012-13)

Each committee has written terms of reference to exercise oversight on behalf of the Board and provide
advice in its remit area These terms of reference are published on cur website

Other committees are constituted if and when required for specific matters

The company has previously appointed 2 Regulatory Committee  However, given the significance of the
regulatory 1ssues and changes taking place or proposed in the regulatory environment in 2012-13, such
regufatory matters have been discussed and decided by the fult Board Consequently, the Regulatory
Committee did not meet duning the year This position witl continue to be reviewed by the Board, which itself
receives an economic regulation report at each scheduled monthly meeting and for the other two months, as
descnbed above

The company has appointed a Nomination Committee Previously, ad hoc committees for appointments were
formed as required The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are published on our website

Remuneration

The directors’ remuneration report 1s set out on pages 59 to 61

Interests

No director declared a matenal interest at any time during the year in any contract of significance with the
company

Conflicts of interests

Conflicts or potential conflicts are governed by the Companies Act 2006 The Board does not have power to ‘
authonse conflicts i a conflict should anse, the conflicted director takes no part in discussions or voting on
that 1ssue

Annual General Meeting

Southern Water Services Limited 1s a private company with single corporate ownership and is not required to
hold an Annual General Meeting (AGM) Greensands Holdings Limited, as the ultimate parent company, does
hold an AGM under its own corporate requirements

51




Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2012-13

UK Corporate Governance Code

The UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code) was designed for companies hsted on the Stock Exchange
A key focus of the Code is the protection of minority investors not otherwise represented directly in the
governance structure of the company For this reason, not all aspects of the Code are directly relevant to a
company with concentrated ownership such as Southern Water Nevertheless the directors have faken
account of the principles of good governance in the UK Corporate Governance Code in determining the
governance arrangements of the company For the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the company has
compled with the spinit and letter of the Code to the extent appropnate for a pnivately owned company
Schedules of our compliance with the Code are published on our website

in a hmited number of respects, we consider that alternative provisions to those in the Code should be
adopted by us, as more appropnate to our private ownership status but stil in the spint of the Code’s
objectives

Conclusions

The Board and | are committed to the company continuing to follow good corporate govemance to underpin
business strategies and plans which ensure that its obhgations to, and interests of, its stakeholders, in
particular customers and regulators, are known and met appropriately

Colin Hood,
Chairman
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Board of Directors

The day-to-day running of our company 1s led by Matthew Wright our Chief Executive Officer, and our
Executive Management Team, which reports to our Board of Directors

Colin Hood
Chairman

Appotnted Chairman in February 2012, Colin Hocd joined the board as a Non-
executive Director 1n February 2011 He 1s a former Chief Operating Officer of
Scottish and Southern Energy (SSE), which he joined in 2001 as Power Systems
Director Before this, he was Director of Distribution for Southern Electric, having
joined the industry with the North of Scotland Hydro Electnc Board in 1977 Colin 1s
Chairman of the Offshaore Renewable Energy Catapult in Glasgow, a Technology
Strategy Board funded mnovation company, an Independent Director on the board
of the Glasgow 2014 Commonwealth Games and a Non-executive Director of First
Group and High Speed 1, the Channel Tunnel rail ink He 1s a graduate of
Strathclyde University, where he studied Electrical Engineering

Matthew Wright
Chief Executive Officer

Appointed in February 2011, Matthew Wnght joined us from United Utilities where
he was Managing Director, Asset Management and Delivery Prior to that, he was
Managing Director, Operations, and his role sincluded management of the
operations, maintenance and customer service activihes of United Utilities’
regulated water and wastewater business as well as oversight of the company’s
external contracts with Dwr Cymru Welsh Water, Scothish PFI projects and other
industnial customers Matthew has more than 23 years’ experience of utility
management in both UK and international markets He joined United Utilities in
2007 from ScottishPower's US operation, where he was Executive Vice-President
of PacifiCorp's transmission, distnibution and customer service division He has
also held serior management positions in operations, regulation, corporate
strategy and commercial utility functions

Michael Carmedy
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed in November 2011, Michael Carmedy joined us from United Utihities
where he was previously the Group Controller and Finance Director United Utilities
Water Plc  He joined United Utilities 1n January 2008 from Thames Water where
he worked for 17 years in vanous financial, commercial and regulatory roles based
in both the UK and the S Immediately prior to joining United Utiities, he was
Thames Water Group Financial Controller, a role he took up following his return
from the US where he spent four years with Thames Water Americas, including
two years as VP Regulation, Amencan Water
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David Golden
Senior Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed in November 2003, David Golden 1s Charman of the MPSL Group of
Construction/Design compantes and EQS Ethica! Previously, he was Contracts
Drrector of Amec, Centracts Director of British Nuclear Fuels plc and Procurement
Director of North West Water, each entity embracing significant civil engineering
based capital programmes Subsequently he was Chief Executive of Banner
Business Supplies and Executive Chairman of Alinx Healthcare plc He is a former
Chairman of the Water Industry Certification Scheme

Robert Armstrong
Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed in May 2008, Robert Armstrong was previously Managing Director of
United Utiities Customer Sales and a Director of United Utilities Water plc He 1s a
former chairman of Water UK and was awarded the OBE for services to the water
industry in 2006

Cheryl Black
Independent Non-executive Director

Cheryl Black joined the board in 2008 She has spent her entire career in
customer-focused roles, including Customer Service Director at Telefonica O2
(2006-2011} and Scottish Water (2002-2006) She currently holds non-executive
roles at Skipton Buillding Society and EDF Nuclear Generation Ltd, and 1s a
Director of Telefonica UK Pension Trustee Ltd Cheryl 1s a Vice-President of the
Institute of Customer Service (ICS) and is a special advisor to the Customer
Contact Association (CCA) She 1s also a Director of Cheryl Black & Partners Ltd, a
customer strategy consultancy

Robert Jennings
independent Non-executive Director

Appointed in July 2012, Robert Jennings 1s also the Department for Transport's
representative on the Board of Crossrall He joned SG Warburg & Co in 1986 and
remained with the organisation until February 2009 where for many years he had
been head/joint head of the bank’s infrastructure group Durng this penod, he was
also seconded to HM Treasury on two occasions Robert graduated from Bristol
Umversity in 1976 after reading Economics & Accounting Articled to Coopers and
Lybrand, he became a Chartered Accountant tn 1979 and, in 2005, was made a
CBE in recogmition of his services to the transport sector and finance industry
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Paul Moy
Nen-executive Director

Paul Moy 1s the global Head and Chief investment Officer for UBS Infrastructure
and Private Equity, a diviston of UBS Globat Asset Management He has extensive
prnincipal investment, investment banking and adviscry expenence in the
Infrastructure sector across a broad range of asset types, including electricity
generation, transmission and distnibution, gas, water, toll roads, ports, rad,
telecommunications and waste management Paul also has considerable
experience as a non-executive director and 1s currently a Non-executive Director of
Northern Star Generation, CWF Holdings and Njord Gas Infrastructure Paul holds
a BA and PhD in Economics

Surinder Toor
Non-executive Director

Sunnder 1s a Managing Director at JP Morgan Asset Management and the global
head of asset management for JP Morgan’s infrastructure Investments Group In
addition to Scuthern Water, he holds directorships in Electncity North West and
Noatum Ports Holdings Previously, he was the Chief Financial Officer at Scotia
Gas Networks plc and prior to that he was Managing Director of Amencan Electnc
Power's European operations He has also held positions with Arthur Andersen,
PowerGen plc and at PricewaterhouseCoopers, where he started his career
Sunnder holds an MA in Engineering, Economics and Management from the
University of Oxford and he 1s a Chartered Accountant

Kevin Hall
Company Secretary and General Counsel

Kevin 1s a qualified solicitor and has worked for Southern Water since 1975

Having alsc undertaken legal environmental and reguiatory work, he focused on
customers and water supply on the creation of Scuthern Water Services in 1989
and became Company Secretary of the Southern Water Group in 1997 following its
acquisition by ScothshPower Since then, he has been involved in many significant
corporate and financing activities in addition to his overall legal responsibilities for
Southern Water In February 2008, he also became Company Secretary of the
Greensands companies and his role continues to be in supporting and advising the
companies’ boards and businesses
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Audit and Risk Review Committee

This report describes the role of the Audit and Risk Review Committee (ARRC) and the work it has
undertaken during the year

The members of the ARRC are Paul Moy (Chairman), Surinder Toor, David Golden, Cheryl Black and {from 1
July 2012) Robert Jennings, whose expenence and background are set out on pages 54 and 55

The members of the commiitee receive updates on financial reporting and the regulatory framework i varnous
forms throughout the year The ARRC Charman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the
Head of Internal Audit, the Group Financial Controller and the external auditors are inwited to all meetings and
are usually in attendance Other members of serwor management are also invited to attend when necessary
or appropriate The ARRC has access to the services of the Head of Internal Audit, the Company Secretary
and external professtonal advisers to assist it in performing its duties

The ARRC met three times in 2012-13 and its work focused on the following key areas

Financial statements

Internal controls

Corporate governance matters

Areas of sk

Oversight of internal and external audit
The regulatory reporting obligations

Audit and Risk Review
Committee attendance in 2012-13

Paul Moy 3/3 Cheryl Black 2/3
David Golden 3/3 Robert Jennings (from 1 July 2012) 2/2
Peter Antolik (as alternate to 3/3

Suninder Toor)

Note ~ Attendance mncludes personal attendance and attendance by telephone
The terms of reference of the ARRC are published on our website

Financial statements

The ARRC received and reviewed the financial statements and the external audit report from Deloitte
regarding the year-end financial statements, considenng any items of sigmificant judgement that have been
made, before making a recommendation to the Board to approve the annual results There were no significant
1ssues to be addressed

Internal controls

The ARRC receives regular reports from Internal Audit in respect of its work on internal controls and reviews
management letters received from the external auditors In addition, the company's sk management
processes and arrangements are also reviewed together with the on-going development of the comphance
and assurance processas in respect of the key risks

The ARRC also receives a regular report of incidents of fraud or bnbery, including the actions taken to
investigate and respond to the incidents and information on potental Incidents of wrong-doing under
investigation There were no matenal incidents during the year
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Further details of our internal control framewaork, including the main features of our internal control and risk
management systems in refation to the financial reporting process, can be found in the Annual Report on
page 44

Oversight of Internal Audit and external audit

The ARRC 1s responsible for overseeing the work of the Internal Audit function and also for managing the
relationship with the external auditor It reviews the performance of the internal and external auditors annually
to ensure that they are effective and recommends to the Board whether the external auditor should be
reappointed

The ARRC regularly holds discussions with both the internal and external auditors in the absence of
management

Internal Audit

The Head of Internal Audit and the team report on a day-to-day basis to management on the effectiveness of
the company’s systems of intemal controls and the adequacy of these systems to manage business risk and
to safeguard the company's assets and resources This work Is reported to the ARRC on a regular basis and
IS a Key element of the assurance that the ARRC receives on the nsks and controls in the company

The ARRC reviews, at least annually, the level of resources and the budget of the Internal Audit function The
Head of Iinternal Audit is free to raise any i1ssues with the ARRC or its Chairman at any time during the year

External auditor

Deloitte LLP was appointed auditor of the company in 2011 following a tendenng process The ARRC
considers the auditor's effectiveness each year and would report to the Board any concerns over the auditor's
continuing appointment

The ARRC reviews annually information provided by the external auditor confirming therr independence and
objectivity within the context of applicable regulatory requirements and professional standards, including any
non-audit work The company does not have a formal policy of tendering the external audit at specific
intervals but would imtiate a tender process if there were any concerns about the quality of the audit or the
Independence and objectivity of the auditor There are no contractual obligations that act to restrict the
Board's choice of external auditor

Details of the amounts paid {o Deloitte for audit and non-audit services are provided in note 4 to the accounts
page 75
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Health and Safety Committee

The Health and Safety Committee (H&SC) is responsible for reviewing and advising on the company’s heaith
and safety policy and the implementation of, and comphance with, agreed policies, applicable guidance and
standards The H&SC reviews incident and accident prevention performance and policies, and any other
matters assigned by the Board

The members of the H&SC are Colin Hood (Charman), Davd Golden, Matthew Wrnght and Robert
Armstrong

The H&SC generally meets in September and March each year, but the March 2013 meeting was postponed
to Apnl In consequence, during the year to 31 March 2013 the H&SC met on only one occasion, but will
maintain its required frequency of meetings in 2013-14

Health and Safety Committee
attendance in 2012-13

Colin Hood 1M Matthew Wright
Dawvid Golden 11 Robert Armstrong 11

Note — Attendance includes personal attendance and attendance by telephone

The terms of reference of the H&SC are published on our website
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Remuneration Committee (formerly Compensation and Human Resources in 2012-13)

The role of the Remuneration Committee (RemCom)} 1s to ensure that the company’s directors and senior
managers are farly rewarded for their overall contribution to company performance, giving due regard to
market rates, mdividual performance and the financial health of the company The RemCom reviews
proposals for the total remuneration package, to include salary and benefits, and any other matters assigned
by the Board

The RemCom determines, on behalf of the Board, the company’s policy on the remuneration of executive
directors and the Chairman It sets the annual level of remuneration of the directors The RemCom 1s also
consulted on the remuneration policy for the next band of senior executive managers The policy framewaork
for remunerating all senior executive managers is consistent with the approach taken for executive directors

To ensure that the company’s remuneration practices are market competitive, the RemCom annually calls
upon experienced specralist consultants The RemCom has received matenial adwvice from Towers Watson (a
leading global professional services company), which has been appointed by the RemCom for the purpose of
providing this advice

Overall packages are inked to market rates of pay, externally assessed and provided by Towers Watson
using both national and industry specific benchmarking data Basic salary and the other benefits, with the
exception of the bonus scheme, are not inked to standards of performance

The members of the RemCom are Dawvid Golden (Chairman), Paul Moy, Robert Armstrong and Surinder Toor
and during the year the RemCom met on five occasions

Remuneration Committee attendance in
2012413

David Golden 4/5 Robert Armstrong 5/5

Paul Moy 415 Peter Antolik (as alternate 5/5
to Sunnder Toor)

Note — Attendance includes personal attendance and attendance by tetephone

The terms of reference of the RemCom are published on our website

The Chief Executive Officer, Maithew Wright, and the Director of Human Resources also attended the
RemCom meetings to provide advice and respond to specific questions Such attendances specifically
excluded any matter concerning their own remuneration

Details are given below of the remuneration policy for the directors of Southern Water Services and the
amounts paid to them in the year ended 31 March 2013

Directors' pay and standards of performance

As required by the Water Act 2003 and Regulatory Accounting Guidance from the Water Services Regulation
Authority (Ofwat), addtional information 1s given below regarding the remuneration of the directors of
Southern Water Services

Executive directors who served dunng the 2012-13 year are shown below

Matthew Wright Chief Executive Officer
Michael Carmedy Chief Financial Officer
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Elements of remuneration
Executive directors’ remuneration compnses the folowing elements

= Base salary
= Benefits, including car allowance, health cover, pension supplement and disturbance/relocation

expenses
=  Annual incentive scheme
*  Pension

= Along-term incentive plan

Base salaries and benefits for each director are reviewed annually by the CHRC wath regard to indwidual
performance and contrnibution, together with consideration of developments in the relevant employment
market for similar roles in utihty companies

The base salary 15 a fixed figure and does not vary in relation to business or individual performance

Betalls of the remuneration received by the executive directors are shown below

Benefits Total DC pension Total
contribution | including
pension
Matthew Wnight 3485 427 2412 6324 326 665.0
Michael Carmedy 2306 236 929 3471 346 381.7

The Chairman and the independent non-executive directors each receive a fee and do not participate in any
of the company's performance related incentive arrangements The investor-nominated non-executive
directors do not receive any remuneration from the company

Detalls of the emoluments receved by the Chairman and non-executive directors are shown below

Colin Hood (Chairman) 2250 - 225.0
Dawvid Golden 60 0 14 4 74.4
Robert Armstrong 400 - 40.0
Cheryl Black 400 - 40.0
Robert Jennings 300 - 30.0
Paul Moy 0o - 0.0
Surinder Toor 00 - 0.0

Other amounts paid to Dawvid Golden relate to consultancy services provided separately to his duties as the
senior independent non-executive director

None of the directors who held office dunng the financial year had any disclosable interests in the shares of
the company or the group, there are no share options in place and no payments were made to them by any
other group companies
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Annual performance related incentive scheme

The Southern Water Incentive Scheme focuses on the achievement of specific strategic goals which are
designed to dnive exceptional financial and operational performance The structure of the scheme and specific
target cntena, both corporate and individual, are set and reviewed on an annual basis by the Remuneration
Commitee

Under the scheme, the executive directors have a maxmum bonus opportunity as shown below, of which 60
per cent 1s hnked to the achievement of the overarching corporate objectives with the remaining 40 per cent
linked to individual performance targets

Matthew Wnght 100 per cent of salary
Michael Carmedy 70 per cent of salary

For 2012-13, the attainment of any payment in relation to the corporate objectives 1s based on the following
cntena

«  Service standards — deliver the targeted improvement in the Service Incentive Mechanism score for
2012

»  Performance assessment {serviceability) — achieving a stable assessment in all four categories
(water above ground, water below ground, wastewater above ground, wastewater befow groundy) for
2012-13, no score for lesser assessment in any category

= Cash revenue — cash receipts from unmeasured and measured customers

» Opex - total operational expenditure

Performance against these corporate targets 1s reviewed annually in May by the Remuneration Committee
and any bonus awarded in June As a result of this, together with the individual performance element, the
following payments have now been made In relation to 2012-13

Matthew Wright £ 200,388
Michael Carmedy £ 92,940

Following confirmation of the final performance scores for 2011-12 and assessment by the committee, an
addihonal payment of £40,800 was also made to Matthew Wnight during 2012-13 in relation to the incentive
award for 2011-12

Long-term incentive plan

A Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for the period 1 Apnl 2011 to 31 March 2015 was agreed by the
Remuneration Committee in 2011-12 Performance payments under the LTIP will be based on the company's
serviceability, Asset Management Assessment (AMA) score, operating efficiency and Service Incentive
Mechanism (SIM) score at 31 March 2015

To date, no payments have been made in relation to this scheme
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Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2013

The directors of Southern Water Services Limited (registered no 02366670) present their repoit and the
audrted financial statements for the year ended 3t March 2013

Principal activities

The principal activities of the company, also referred to as SWS, are the provision of water supply and
wastewater services in the South East of England The company I1s regulated by the Water Services
Regulation Authority (Ofwat) and supphes water to nearly 2 4 million people and provides wastewater
services to nearly 4 5 million people

Business review

The information that fulfils the requirement of the business review can be found in our Annual Report on
pages 9 to 46

Future developments

The information regarding future developments of the company can be found in our Annual Report on pages
9to 46

Results and dividends

The profit and loss account on page 66 shows the company’s results and profit for the year Further details
are also avallable in the Annual Report on pages 36 to 39

Intenm dividends of £771 76 per ordinary share (2011-12 £751 44 per share), totalling £43 2 milhon (2011-
12 £42 1 million) were paid dunng the year to Southern Water Services Group (SWSG) These dividends,
along with associated group tax relief of £13 7 muilion, enable SWSG to pay the interest of £66 9 milion due
to Southern Water Services on an inter-company loan as disclosed in note 7 to the accounts

The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend for 2012-13 (2011-12 £ml) For the second year
running, no dividends were paid to our ultimate investors

Directors and their interests

The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March 2013 and up to the date of signing the financial
statements were as follows and further details can be found on pages 53 to 55

Colin Hood (Chairman)

Matthew Wright (Executive Director — Chief Executive Officer)
Michael Carmedy {Executive Director — Chief Financial Officer)
Robert Armstrong {Independent Non-executive Director)
Cheryl Black {independent Non-executive Director)

David Golden (Senior Independent Non-executive Director)
Robert Jennings (Independent Non-executive Director) (Appointed 1 July 2012)
Peter Antolik (Alternate Non-executive Director)

Paul Moy (Non-executive Director)

Bronte Somes (Alternate Non-executive Director)

Sunnder Toor {Non-executive Director)

None of the directors who held office during the financial year had any disclosable interests in the shares of
the company or the group
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Research and development

The improvement of existing services and processes, together with the identification and development of new
technology and solutions, are important aspects of the company's strategy to enhance the qualty of service to
customers and improve methods of working Research and development expenditure for the year amounted
to £0 5 million (2011-12 £0 5mullion)

Financial nsk management
The Financial Risk Management Policy 1s included in the Annual Report on pages $ to 46
Employees

Employee involvement: The company recognises the importance of its empioyees and 15 committed to
effective two-way communication and consultation

The company has established Business Involvement Groups to facilitate meaningful consultation between
company management and employees through elected employee representatives The groups meet reguiarly
at both a functional and company-wide level An employee survey 1s also completed on an annual basis to
seek input from employees

The company recognises the rights of every employee to join a trade union and participate in its actvities
SWS have a single union agreement with Umison

The company publishes its own in-house newspaper, Southern Water News, on a regular basis General
information 1s posted on the company intranet and regular team briefing sessions are also held The
information in these publications and briefings covers a wide range of subjects that affect the business,
including progress an business and capital projects, the impact of regulatory 1ssues and wider financial and
economic 1ssues that may affect the company

Equal opportunity: The company’s policy Is to promote equality of opportunity in recruitment, employment
continuity, training and career development The company takes full account of the needs of people with
disabilittes and follows set policies and procedures to support reasonable adjustments in the workplace

Health and safety- The company recognises Its duties to make proper provision for the health, safety and
welfare at work of its employees

Every employee receives a copy of the corporate policy statement on health and safety There are regular
meetings of employee representatives and managers to consider all aspects of health and safety In addition
there I1s a health and safety management review group which ensures that there 1s an adequate system for
meeting the company's responsibilities for health and safety to its staff, customers and members of the public

SWS provides an nternal occupational health service for employees, including the provision of physiotherapy
These services have been developed and are continuously reviewed to ensure they meet the needs of the
bustness and our empioyees at work

Creditor payment policy and practice

The company’s policy and practice is to pay all suppliers, contractors and service providers in accordance
with pre-agreed terms The company’s trade creditor days at 31 March 2013 were 54 days (2011-12 57
days)
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Environmental issues

The company 15 committed to meeting or mproving upon legislative and regulatory environmental
requirements and codes of practice, and aims to contaun the environmental impact of its activities to a
practicable mimmum

The company’s environmental performance 1s reported on pages 21 to 22 The company recognises its
responsibility to operate within a framework that supports sustainable development and has established,
where possible, indicator targets which are measurable Performance against these targets 1s monitored and
reported regularly

Charitable donations
The company made donations of £323,070 (2011-12 £320,181) to a variety of chanbes over the year

Donations in the year comprsed £240,000 (2011-12 £220,000) to the Southern Water Chanitable Trust
Fund, a chantable trust set up to assist customers who are suffering hardship, poverty or a poor quality of life
by providing grants to help them pay therr water bills, and a further £83,070 (201 1-12 £100,181) of donations
to other charities within the region

No polibical donatians were made
Land and buildings

In the opinion of the directors, the market value of land 1s significantly more than its book value However, it
would not be practicable to quantify the difference precisely

Going concern

The directors believe, after due and careful enquiry, that the company has sufficient resources for its present
requirements and, therefore, consider it approprate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements to 31 March 2013 Further information ts set out in note 1 ‘Going concern’ on page 70

Qualifying third party indemnity

Following shareholder approval, the company has also provided an indemnity for its directors and the
Company Secretary, which is a qualifying third party indemnity provision for the purposes of the Companies
Act 2006

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations \

Company law requires the directors to prepare financiat statements for each financial year Under that law the |
directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted |
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable taw) Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that peniod In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to

= Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

=  Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

= State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained In the financial statements

= Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it Is inapproprate to presume that
the Company will continue in business
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The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the corporate and financial information
included on the company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Statement of disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

(1) So far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor is
unaware, and

(2) He/she has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to estabhish that the company’s auditor 1s
aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Auditor
Deloitte LLP has indicated its willingness to continue in office

Apprioved by the Board of Directors and signed by order of the Board

Kewh Hall
Company Secretary
26 June 2013
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Financial statements

Profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Other operating income
Operating profit

Profit on disposal of fixed assets

Profit on ordinary activities before interest
and taxation

Interest payable and simiar charges
Interest recewvable and similar income

Profit on ordinary activities before
taxation

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation

The above results relate to continuing operations

The notes on pages 70 to 95 form part of these financial statements

Note

23

20

2013
£m

778.7

(425.3)

3534

(27.5)

5.1

331.0

1.0

332.0

(211.8)
58.9

1791

{22.2)

156.9

2012
£m

716 2

417 3)

208 9

(27 4)

01

2716

12

272 8

{250 2)
62 3

849

(50

79 9

There 1s no difference between the profit on ordinary activities before taxation for the years as stated above

and their historical cost equivalents
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation

Actuanal loss recognised in the pension scheme
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension deficit
Total recognised gans for the year

Note

20,22

2013 2012
£m £m
156.9 799
(7.3) (40 0)
1.2 95
150.8 49 4
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Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2013

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors amounts falling due within one year

Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabihities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Provision for liabilities

Environmental obligations

Deferred taxation

Grants and contributions

Net assets excluding pension deficit
Pension deficit

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Share premium

Profit and loss account

Total shareholder's funds

Note

10

12
13
14

15

16

17
17

18

22

19
20
20

2013 2012
£m £m
4,264.3 41095
29.2 292
4,293.5 41387
1.5 19
416.6 163 5
812.3 812 3
139.9 754
1,370.3 1,053 1
{505.9) (250 6)
864.4 8025
5,157.9 49841 2
(3,767.5) (3,666 5)
(08) (08)
{356.8) {349 6)
(46.4) 47 9)
986.4 876 4
{721) 69 7)
914.3 806 7
0.1 01
46 3 46 3
867 9 760 3
914.3 806 7

The financial statements of Southern Water Services Limited (Registered no 02366670) on pages 66 to 95
were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 26 June 2013 They were signed on its behalf by

Michael Carmedy
Chief Financial Officer

68




Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2012-13

Cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes

Net cash inflow from operating activities 21

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest recewed

Interest paid

Preference share dividends

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance

Taxation

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Receipt of grants and contnbutions

Sale of tangible assets

Movement on loan to subsidiary

Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment

Equity dividends paid
Net cash outflow before financing

Financing

Increase in borrowings
Repayment of loans

Issue costs of new loans

Net cash inflow from financing

Increase/(decrease) in cash

Reconciliation to net debt
Net debt at beginning of year
increase/(decrease) In cash
Short term loan to subsidiary
Movements in borrowings
Debt 1ssue costs

Other non-cash changes

Net debt at end of year

2013 2012
£m £m
499.8 487 1
58.5 597
(129.7) {129 5)
(10.6) {109)
(81.8) {807)
(13.7) (23 2)
(360.1) {466 0)
10.1 117
0.6 09
(227.1) {14 8)
(576.5) (468 2)
{43 2) (42 1)
{215.4) (127 1)
300.0 500
(15.4) {19 5)
(4.7) -
279.9 305
64.5 (96 B)
{3,612.8) (3,373 2)
64.5 (96 6)
247.5 -
{284.6) (30 5)
4.7 -
(70.8) (112 5)
{3,651.5) (3,612 8)
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently throughout the current and preceding
year, are set out below

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basss, under the historical cost
convention, and i accordance with apphcable UK accounting standards and, subject to the treatment of
infrastructure grants and contributtons described below, with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis of preparation

The financial statements contamn information about Southern Water Services Limited (SWS) as an indmwidual
company and do not contain consolidated financial information as the parent of subsidiary companies The
company 15 exempt under Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare
consolidated financial statements as it and its subsidiary undertaking are included by full consolidation in the
consolidated financial statements of the ultimate holding company, Greensands Holdings Limited

Going concern

The directors have undertaken a detailed review of the company’s iquidity requirements compared with the
cash and facilities avaitable, the financial covenant pasition including projections based on future forecasts,
the current ratings and financial nsk and have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate
resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future being a penod of at least 12 months
from the approval of these financial statements For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at historic purchase cost less accumulated depreciation and any prowision for
impairment Cost includes the onginat purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use, these include matenals, labour and applicabie overheads
Interest costs are not capitalised

1) Infrastructure assets (being mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservoirs,
dams, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls) comprise a network of assets covering the company’s geographic
area

Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases in capacity or enhancement of the network and on
maintaining the operating capability of the network in accordance with defined standards of service, 1s treated
as an addition to fixed assets and Is stated at ¢ost after deducting grants and contributions Staff costs that
directly relate to the construction of a specific infrastructure asset are capitalised on the basis of the amount
of ime spent by individuals on projects

The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets 1s the estimated level of annualised expenditure required to
maintain the operating capahility of the network and 1s based on the asset management plan determined by
Ofwat as part of the price regulation process The asset management plan 1s developed from historical
experience combined with a rolling programme of reviews of the condition of the infrastructure assets
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Tangible fixed assets and depreciation (continued)
ny Other tangible fixed assets (including above ground assets, plant and equipment) are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciatton and any provision for impairment These assets are depreciated down to their
residual values on a straight-ine basis over theirr estimated operating ives which are principally as follows

Years
Buildings 10-60
Operational structures 15-80
Fixed plant 10-40
Vehicles, computers and mobile plant 3-10

Operational structures are assets used for wastewater and water treatment purposes These include water
tanks and similar assets

i) Freehold land 1s not depreciated

V) Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until they are commissioned Commissioning Is
deemed to occur when a new works Is officially taken over fromn the contractor followming completion of
performance and take-over tests

v) Private Sewers were adopted in October 2011 and have been valued at nil value, as permitted by
UKGAAP and by reference to the net present value of the incremental cash flows as a result of the adoption.
These assets form part of our infrastructure assets and expenditure associated with them has been treated as
descnbed above

Grants and contributions
Revenue grants and contributions are credred to the profit and loss account in the year to which they relate

Capital grants and customer contributions in respect of additions to non-tnfrastructure tangible fixed assets
are treated as deferred income and released to the profit and loss account over the estimated operational
ives of the related assets in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act

Grants and capital contributions received relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of
tangible fixed assets as permitted by Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP) 4 This is not n
accordance with Schedule 1 of the Companies Act 2006 which requires tangible fixed assets to be stated at
their purchase price or production cost The Act does not permit the deduction of centnibutions

This departure from the requirements of the Act 1s, in the optnion of the directors, necessary for the financial
statements to give a true and far view because infrastructure assets do not have determinable finite ives
Accordingly related capital contributions would not be recognised in the profit and loss account The effect of
this treatment on tangible fixed assets 1s disclosed in note 10

Leased assets

Where the company enters into a lease which entails taking substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership of an asset, the lease i1s treated as a “finance lease™ The asset I1s recorded in the balance sheet as
a tangible fixed asset and I1s depreciated over its estimated useful life or the term of the lease, whichever is
shorter Future instalments under such leases, net of finance charges, are included within creditors Rentals
payable are apportioned between the finance element, which 1s charged to the profit and loss account, and
the capital element which reduces the outstanding obligation for future instalments

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Leased assets (continued)

The sale of income rights relating to aerial masts and sites owned by the company to third parties 1s treated
as an operating lease Income received from such sales 1s received entirely in advance and is therefore
taken to deferred revenue and will be credited to other operating income in the profit and loss account over
the Iife of the lease

Sale and leaseback transactions occur when an asset is sold but use 1s iImmecdhately re-acquired by entering
into a lease with the buyer Where the new lease 1s an operating lease, the transaction s treated as the
disposal of an asset and the operating lease accounted for in accordance with existing policies

Fixed asset investments

Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost, less provision, If appropriate, for any impairment in vatue
other than a temporary impairment in value The carrying values of fixed asset investments are reviewed for
impairment in periods If events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable

Stocks

Stock 1s held for use in the production of water supply and treatment of wastewater Stock 15 held at
replacement cost

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue inciudes monies received from customers where the related turnover has not yet been
recognised

Amounts are deferred to the balance sheet and released to the profit and loss account in ine with the period
of the service provided

Provisions

An environmental provision 15 made in accardance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 12 for the costs
relating to the decommuissioning of abandoned sites No reimbursement I1s expected

Taxation

The taxation charge in the profit and loss account is based on the profit for the year as adjusted for
disallowable and non-taxable items using current rates and takes into account tax deferred because of timing
differences between the treatment of certain tems for taxation and accounting purposes

Deferred taxation i1s provided on all timing differences that have onginated but not reversed by the balance
sheet date, calculated at the rate at which 1t 1s expected the tax will arise in accordance with FRS19 'Deferred
Tax’ Deferred taxation balances are not discounted Deferred tax assets are recogrused to the extent that it
1s regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Turnover

Turnover represents the iIncome receivable {excluding value added tax) in the ordinary course of business for
goods and services provided and, in respect of unbilled charges, includes accrued income

Turnover relates to services provided in the year and excludes payments received in advance which are
recorded as deferred revenue

Unmetered income 1$ based on either the rateable vatue of the property or on an assessed volume of water
supphed Metered income is based on actual or estimated water consumption

Turnover includes an estimate of the consumption between the date of the last meter reading and the penod
end The unbidled income accrual 1s based on estimated usage from the last meter reading date through to the
end of the reporting penod The accrual 1s estimated using a defined methodology based upon histoncal
bilhing and consumption information and the applicable tanff

Bad debts

The bad debt provision I1s calculated by applying estimated recovery rates to various categornies of debt and
reflecting past collections expenence and expectations of future recovery of outstanding receivables at the
year end

Pensions

SWSE operates a defined benefit pension scheme, the assets of which are held separately from those of the
company In independently administered funds An independent actuary conducts a valuation of this pension
scheme every three years

In accordance with FRS 17 the pension defict has been recognised on the balance sheet and operating and
financing costs of pension and post-retirement schemes are recognised separately in the profif and loss
account

Pension scheme assets are measured using market values Pension scheme liabilities are measured using
the projected unit actuanal method and are discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate
bond of equivalent terms and currency to the lability The increase in the present value of the habilities of the
company's defined benefit pension schemes expected to arise from employee service in the penod 1s charged
to operating profit The expected return on the schemes’ assets and the increase during the year in the
present value of the schemes’ liabihities ansing from the passage of time are included in other finance iIncome
Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

Service costs are systematically spread over the service lives of the employees and financing costs are
recognised in the period in which they anse The costs of past service benefit enhancements, settlements and
curtalments are also recognised in the penod in which they anse

The differences between actual and expected returns on assets and liabilihes durnng the year, including
changes in actuanal assumptions, are recognised In the statement of total recognised gains and losses

The company also operates a defined contrnibution pension scheme The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund Company contnbutions to the
scheme are charged to the profit and loss account in the penod to which they relate
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Research and development

Expenditure on research and development 1s charged to the profit and loss account as it I1s incurred
Expenditure on fixed assets relating to development projects i1s written off over the expected useful iife of
those assets

Preference shares

Preference shares are classified as debt in accordance with FRS 25 ‘Financial instruments disclosure and
presentation’ The preference shares are redeemable on a specific date or at the company's option anytime
earlier Dividends on preference shares classified as debt are recognised in the profit and loss account
through interest payable The value of the debt has been based on the original nominal value and share
premium on issue of the shares

Capital instruments

Interest-bearing borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges
are accounted for on an accruals basis in the profit and loss account and are added to the carrying amount of
the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the penod in which they anse

The 1ssue costs of capital Instruments are amortised over the Iife of the financial instrument to which they
relate

Premiums and proceeds from gilt lock agreements received on i1ssue of debt instruments are credited to the
profit and loss account over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the carrying amount

The carrying value of index-linked debt instruments is adjusted for the annual movement in the retail price
index The change in value anising from indexation 1s charged or credited to the profit and loss account in the
year in which it arises

2 Segmental analysis

The directors believe that the whole of SWS’s activities constitute a single class of business The company’s
turnover I1s generated wholly from within the United Kingdom

3 Classification of turnover and revenue costs

Turnover represents the income receivable for providing water supply and wastewater services and 1s
generated wholly in the United Kingdom

Cost of sales reflects the direct costs of providing water supply and wastewater services Administrative
expenses comprise the indirect costs of the business Other operating ncome includes rents receivable and a
management charge relating to the sale of an investment in a group company
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Notes to the financial statements {(continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

4 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 15 stated after charging/(crediting)

Employee costs
Pension curtallment gain
Employee costs (note 5a)

Depreciation on
- owned assets
- assets held under finance leases

Rentals under operating leases
Vehicles

Research and development expenditure
Amortisation of grants and contributicns {note 18)

Fees payable to the company's audror in respect of

- Statutory audit of the company's financial statements
Other services pursuant to legislation
- All other services

5§ Employee information

{a) Employee costs {including directors’ emoluments):
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs - Defined contnibution
- Defined benefit
- Curtailment gain®
Total employee costs

Less charged as capital expenditure
Charged to the profit and loss account

2013 2012
£m £m
433 405
(9.0) -
34.3 405
215.4 206 4
0.8 04
216.2 206 8
3.5 37
0.5 05
(2.8) 27)
0.2 02
0.1 01
0.1 01
2013 2012
£m £m
56.0 527
5.6 47
1.0 07
6.5 62
{9.0) -
601 643
(25.8) (238)
343 40 5

Employee costs that are charged as capital expenditure are those directly related to the construction or

acquisttion of assets

*Duning 2012-13 a curtailment gain arose from changes made 10 the benefits accruing to employee members

of the Southern Water Pension scheme, these changes are detailed in note 22
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5 Employee information (continued)
{b) Average number of persons employed by activity

The average monthly numbers of persons (including executive directors) employed by the company dunng
the year was

2013 2012

Number Number

Operations 1,055 941
Customer Services 461 447
Corporate Centre 422 354
1,938 1,742

6 Directors’ emoluments

2013 2012

£000 £000

Aggregate emoluments (including benefits in kind}) 1,389 1,225
Company pension contributions to money purchase pension schemes 87 63

No retirement benefits accrued to directors (2011-12 none) under a Southern Water defined benefit scheme
Retirement benefits accrued to two directors (2011-12 two) under a Southern Water defined contribution
scheme

Details of emoluments and benefits for the highest paid director

2013 2012
£000 £000
Highest paid director’s aggregate emoluments and benefits 632 632

During the year the company made contributions of £32,575 (2011-12 £48,583) to a money purchase
pension scheme in respect of the highest paid directer's qualifying services
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

7 Interest

Interest payable and simtlar charges
Interest payable on other loans

Interest paid to group companies

Indexation

Amorhsation of issue costs

Amortisation of git lock proceeds
Amortisation of deferred credits

Amortisation of bond premium

Amortisation of discount

Other finance expense (note 22)

Dividends on preference shares - see note below
Total interest payable and similar charges

Interest receivable and similar income

Interest receivable from Southern Water Services Group Limited

Deposit interest receiwvable
Other finance interest (note 22)
Total interest receivable

2013 2012
£m £m
7.2 55

123.1 1213

76.9 1135
2.7 27

(0.1) (1)

(9.8) (9 8)

(0.8) (0 6)
0.3 03
15 -

10.6 17 4

2118 2502

56.9 56 9
2.0 24
- 30

58.9 62 3

Class A1 preference share dividends amounted to £40 per share and Class B £70 per share totaling £9 0Om

{2011-12 £9 6m)

A dividend due to the Class A2 preference shareholders of £49 (2011-12 £239) per share totalling £1 6m
(2011-12 £7 8m) was declared and settled in the year at base value plus an amount for out-performance in

the year ended 31 March 2012 (see note 16{vi))

The interest receivable from Southern Water Services Group Limited relates to the long term debtor disclosed

in note 14
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities 2013 2012

£m £m
Current tax- |
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 9.3 505 |
Adjustment in respect of pnor years {(07) 16 |
Total current tax 8.6 521
Deferred tax:
Ongmation and reversal of tming differences 24.3 (20 4)
Adjustment in respect of prior years {1.5) (3 8)
Pension cost relief in excess of pension charge 59 49
Effect of corporation tax rate change (15.5) {29 1)
Impact of rate change on pension charge 0.4 13
Total deferred tax 13.6 {47 1)
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 22 2 50

The tax assessed for the year s different to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (24%) due to the
following factors

2013 2012
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 179.2 84 9
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profits for the year at 24% (2011-12 26%) 430 221
Adjustment in respect of prior years (0.7) 16
Pension cost relief In excess of pension charge (59) 49
Group relief received (13.1} -
Permanent differences 9.6 129
Tax charge on ordinary activities 32.9 3t7
Timing differences (24.3) 204
Current tax charge for year 8.6 52 1

Factors that may affect future tax charges

On 21 March 2012 the UK Government announced a reduction in the main rate of corporation tax from 24 per
cent to 23 per cent effective from 1 Apnl 2013 The rate change was enacted in Finance Bili 2012 during the
penod, and deferred tax balances have been calculated using the new rate of 23 per cent A £15 5m creditis
recognised In the profit and loss account in the year to reflect the reduction in the deferred tax iability as a
result of the rate change In addition, charges of £0 4m in the profit and loss account and £0 5m in the
statement of total recognised gains and losses are recognised to reflect the reduction in the deferred tax
asset relating to the pension deficit

The Government has also announced further reductions in the main tax rate to 21 per cent from 1 Apnl 2014
and 20 per centfrom 1 Apnl 2015 [f enacted these rate reductions are expected to have a similar impact on
the financial statements as outlined above, however the actual impact will be dependent on the company’s
deferred tax position at that time

Based on current capital investment plans, the company expects to continue to be able to clam capstal
allowances In excess of depreciaticn in future years at a similar level to the current year

The company pays group reliefin full to Southern Water Services Group Limited and at a reduced rate of ten
pence In the pound for certain losses in other group companies
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

9 Dwidends per share

Ordinary shares

Intenim dividend — Q1
Intenim dividend — Q2
Internm dividend - Q3
Interrm dividend — Q4

Total interm dividend
Final dividend

Total ordinary dividend

2013 2012 2013 2012
£ per £ per £m £m
ordinary ordinary
share share
192 94 187 86 108 105
192 94 187 86 10.8 105
192 94 187 86 10.8 106
192.94 187 86 108 1056
771.76 75144 43.2 421
771.76 751 44 43.2 421

The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend for 2012-13 (2011-12 £nil)

The intenm dividends totatiing £43 2m are paid to Southern Water Services Group Limited (SWSG) These
dividends, along with associated group tax relief, enable SWSG to pay the interest of £56 9m due to Southern
Water Services Limited on an inter-company loan as disclosed in note 7

10 Tangible fixed assets and capital commitments

(a) Tangible assets

Cost

At 1 Apnl 2012
Additions

Transfers

Grants & contributions
Disposals

At 31 March 2013

Accumulated depreciation’

At 1 Apnill 2012
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2013

Net book amount'
At 31 March 2013

At 31 March 2012

Freehotd Plant & Infra-  Assets in the Other Total
land & Machinery structure course of
buildings assets  construction
£m £m £m £m £m £m
1,3306 1,798 3 1,892 8 6394 5399 6,201.0
15 439 500 2300 54 6 380.0
114 150 6 72 4 (264 1) 297 -
- - (8 8) - - (8.8)
{04) {19 1) 41 - 107 (12.9)
1,343 1 1,9737 2,0023 6053 6349  6,559.3
453 3 6700 6311 - 3371 2,091.5
373 718 66 6 - 405 216.2
{10) {18 3) “4n - 107 (12.7)
489 6 7235 6936 - 388 3 2,295.0
8535 1,250.2 1,308.7 605.3 246.6 4,264 3
B77 3 1,128 3 1,261 7 639 4 2028 4,109 5
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Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

10 Tangible fixed assets and capital commitments (continued)

Of the additrons and transfers into infrastructure assets, the amount spent on infrastructure renewals net of
contnibutions during the year ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 was £78 2m and £86 5m,
respectively The associated contributions were £2 6m for the year ended 31 March 2013 and £4 1m for the
year ended 31 March 2012

For the years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, the net book value of infrastructure assets 1s stated
after deducting grants and contributions since privatisation of £204 4m and £195 6m, respectively

Freehold land Is stated at a cost of £46 0m and £46 Om at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, respectively,
and 15 not depreciated

Other assets relate primarly to computer equipment, meter reading devices and motor vehicles

Assets held under finance leases have been capitalised and included in plant and machinery

2013 2012
£m £m
Cost 16.3 117
Aggregate depreciation (11.4) (10 &)
Net book amount 49 11
Outstanding payments and interest associated with this lease are not matertal
(b) Capttal commitments 2013 2012
£m £m
In respect of contracts placed 184.7 2010
11 Fixed asset investments
Shares in group undertakings 2013 2012
£m £m
At 1 Aprii and 31 March 29.2 292

The investment represents a 100 per cent holding of the 1ssued Ordinary shares of Southern Water Services
{Finance) Ltd (SWSF), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands but registered for tax in the UK The
pnncipal activity of SWSF is to raise debt finance

The directors are satisfied that the carrying value of the investment 1s supported by the underlying assets and
activities of SWSF

There are no indirect subsidianes resulting from this investment

12 Stocks
2013 2012
£m £m
Raw matenals 1.0 10
Work In progress 0.5 09
1.5 i9
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

13 Debtors amounts falling due within one year

2013 2012
£m £m
Trade debtors 76.9 621
Loan to Southern Water Services (Finance) Limited 247.5 204
Amounts owed by group undertakings 86 25
Other debtors 90 95
Accrued income 627 556
Prepayments 119 134
416.6 1635
The funds raised from the new Class B loan (note 16(iv)) have been lent to SWSF n readiness for the
repayment of the existing Class B loan (note15) in 2013-14 Amounts owed by group undertakings are
unsecured, interest-free and settled regularly
14 Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2013 2012
£m £m
Loans owed by group undertakings 8123 8123
8123 8123

Loans owed by group undertakings represent a loan to Southern Water Services Group Limited which is
secured on the assets held under the Southern Water Sennces Group Securnity agreement and repayable on

31 July 2052 with interest payable at 7 per cent per annum

15 Credhtors: amounts falling due within one year

2013 2012

£m £m
Trade creditors 194 157
Loans from group undertakings (see note (1) below) 303 303

Loan from Southern Water Services (Finance) Limited (see note 16 {m)) 250.0 -

Amounts owed to group undertakings 48.8 535
Capital creditors and capital accruals 73.7 553
Taxation and social security 2.3 23
Debt issue costs (note 16 {vi)) {3.4) (2 6)
Accruals and deferred revenue 74.7 860
Bond premium deferred 0.3 03
Deferred gilt lock proceeds (note 16 (vin)) 0.1 01
Deferred proceeds 9.7 97
505.9 2506

Notes (1) The loan from group undertakings i1s unsecured, interest free, and shall be repayable in whole or

part upon demand at any time, provided that

(a) On the date of such demand, no class A debt I1s outstanding, no class B debt I1s outstanding and

no mezzanine debt 1s outstanding, or
(b} The consent of the Security Trustee 1s given
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2013 2012
£m £m
Loans and other borrowings
Loan from Southern Water Services (Finance) Limited 3,356.6 3,2950
Capex facility £150m — 6 month Libor plus 3% 2013 150.0 100 0
Class A1 Preference shares (see note (vi) below) 326 326
Class B Preference shares (see note (vi) below) 110.0 1100
Debt issue costs (see note (vi) below) {42.9) (41 6)
Bond premium deferred 44 48
Deferred gilt lock proceeds (see note (vin) below) 5.4 55
Deferred proceeds* 134.5 144 2
Obligations under finance leases 1.3 -
Total loans and other borrowings 3,7519 3,650 5
Deferred revenue (see note (1x) below) 15.6 16 0
Total creditors falling due after more than one year 3,767 5 3,666 5
2013 2012
£m £m
Repayments fall due as follows:
Between two and five years 150 0 100 0
After five years not by instalments 3,499 2 34376
3,649.2 3,5376

Under the loan agreements between SWS and SWSF, SWSF advances an amount equal to each bond or
other debt raised at the same Interest rate plus 0 01 per cent Therefore each individual back to back inter-

company loan has been separately disclosed
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16 Creditors. amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

An analysts of the loans 1s shown below

2013 2012
Loans £m £m
- £349 3m 3 350% index linked 2029/2037 &
Class A £350m £0 7m 6 202% fixed rate 2029 (note (1) below) 3847 3722
Class A £150m - 3 716% index linked 2034 203.8 197 5
Class A £35m - 3 716% index linked 2034 48.2 46 7
- £141 9m 3 709% index linked & .
Class A £350m £208 1m 6 650% fixed rate 2026 (note (i) below) 362.7 3576
Class A £150m - 3 826% windex linked 2023 203.8 197 6
- £177 Om 2 070% index linked &
Class A £350m £173 Om 5 010% fixed rate 2021 (note (i) below) 369.3 3630
Class A £150m - 0 510% index linked 2041 (note (1) below) 1959 190 0
Class A £200m - 0 070% index inked 2052 {(note (1) below) 255.2 2476
Class A £300m - 0 490% index Iinked 2056 {note (1) below) 3514 3389
- £195 Om Libor plus 3 029% 2019 &
Class A £300m £105 Om 6 135% fixed rate 2019 {note (1) below) 300.0 3000
Artesian £165m - 4 086% index inked 2033 2241 217 3
Artesian £156 5m - 3 645% index inked 2032 207.5 2012
Total Class A debt 3,106.6 3,02986
Class B £250m - 7 879% fixed rate 2038 (note () below) - 2500
Class B £250m - 4 51% fixed rate 2022 (note (v) below) 2500 -
Senior Mezzanine £127 2m - 11 97% fixed rate 2038 (note (v} below) - 154
Debt issue costs (note (vii) below) (42 9) (416)
Bond premium deferred 4.4 48
Deferred gilt lock proceeds (note (vin) below) 54 55
Deferred proceeds* 134.5 144 2
Total ioans and other borrowings from SWSF 3,458.0 3,407 9
Capex facility £150m — 6 month Libor plus 3% 2017 150.0 1000
Class A1 Preference shares (note (vi) below) 32.6 326
Class B Preference shares {note (v1) below)} 110.0 1100
Obligations under Finance Leases 13 -
Total loans and other horrowings 3,751.9 3,650 5

*Deferred proceeds represent consideration receved by the company in connection with taking on various
debt obhgations that were “out of the money” at the time the debt obligations were entered into The deferred
proceeds are amortised over the lives of the related debt instruments

83




Southern Water Annual Report and Accounts 2012-13

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

These loans {(excluding the preference shares) are guaranteed and secured pursuant to a guarantee and
security agreement (the Securnty Agreement) The agreement 1s over the entire property, assets, rights and
undertaking of each of SWS, SWSF, SWS Heldings Limited, and SWS Group Holdings Limited In the case of
SWS, this I1s to the extent permitted by the Water Industry Act 1991 and Licence Further, the company has a
contingent liability ansing on certain inter-company financing arrangements which will have the effect that if
certain refinancings do not take place when the underlying instruments mature in 2021 to 2029, the company
witl make good certain obligations of its subsidiary SWSF The directors do not believe this to be likely and
the habihity, if any, cannot currently be quantified as it will depend wholly on the circumstances at the time of
the matunty

In respect of the specific instruments above

() As at 31 March 2013, SWSF was party to vanous swap agreements converting a total of £1,318 2m of
Class A debt from the original fixed interest rate to a real interest rate linked to RPI (Retail Price Index)
plus capitahsed inflation on the nominal value of the underlying Class A debt

The table below analyses the total value of swaps entered into by SWSF as at 31 March 2013

Onginal Swapped Nominal value

Nominal value Fixed Index Linked of debt plus
of debt Interest rate interest rate  capitalised RPI
£349 3m 6 192% 3 340% £384 Om

£141 9m 6 640% 3699% £154 6m

£177 Om 5 000% 2 060% £196 3m

£150 0m 5 000% 0 500% £195 9m

£200 Om 4 500% 0 060% £2552m

£300 Om 5125% 0 480% £351 4m
£1,318 2m £1,537 4m

{n) SWSF has entered into swap agreements that have converted £195m of its Class A £300m from a fixed
rate of 6 125 per cent to floating rates of Libor plus a margin with a Libor cap at 5 per cent This swapped
rate has been reftected in the rate charged to SWS plus 0 01 per cent

(m) The interest rate on the Class B £250m s fixed at 7 §79 per cent until March 2014 when it reverts to
Libor plus a margin to be determined with a premium of 0 01 per cent This loan will be repaid m March
2014 and has been reclassified as a creditor under one year for 2012-13, see note 15

(v) The interest rate on the Class B £250m s fixed at 4 51 per cent until March 2022 when it reverts to Libor
plus a margin to be determined with a premium of 0 01 per cent

(v) The interest rate on the Senior Mezzanine loan is fixed at 11 97 per cent untii March 2022 when It reverts
te Libor plus 6 25 per cent with a premium of 0 01 per cent

(vr) The preference shares issued have been classified as loans in the financial statements as required by
FRS 25 All shares are redeemable at the option of SWS at any ime

The Class A1 and B preference shares, which do not carry vobing rights, were 1ssued on 23 July 2003,
and are redeemable at their nominal value plus the share premium paid, on 31 March 2038 or at the
company’s option anytime earlier Class A1 and B shares were 1ssued at £1,000 per share and the
amounts received totalled £260 Om for both classes of shares Class A2 preference shares were 1ssued
for £0 01 per share on 7 May 2003 and the amount received totatled £1,500 Class A2 shares, which do
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16 Creditors: amounts faling due after more than one year (continued)

not carry voting nghts, are also redeemable at nominal value Shareholders are entitled to receive
dividends annually as follows

Class A1 - £40 per share

Class A2 — the base value dividend plus an amount for company out-performance and any savings
ansing from any refinancing of the Mezzanine debt The base value 1s £mil per share increasing by £15
every five

years (Out-performance from 1 Apnil 2007 onwards 1s the difference between Southern Water Services
Limited’s audited ‘profit before interest and taxation’ and the targeted ‘profit before interest and taxation'’
as determined by Ofwat in the periodic review )

Class B — £70 per share
These dividends are payable on 31 March and 30 September each year

it 1s antictpated that a dividend will be declared and paid to the A2 preference shareholders in September
2013 for out-performance n the year ending March 2012

On winding up the preference shareholders rank above ordinary shareholders with the preference
shareholders being paid in order of Class A1, Class A2 then Class B

{vi} Debt issue costs represent 1ssue fees paid to SWSF Where these costs are attributable to a specific
instrument they are being amortised over the life of that instrument The remaining costs are being
amortised over the weighted average life of the loan advances noted above As at 31 March 2013 debt
Issue costs amounted to £46 3m of which £3 4m represents the short-term amount which 1s disclosed
separately in note 15

(vi1) Prior to the 1ssue of the Class A £300m bond in the year to 31 March 2008, SWSF entered into a gilt lock
agreement, resulting in the receipt of £6 3m, which was advanced to SWS along with the proceeds of the
bond 1ssue The proceeds have been deferred in the financial statements of SWS and are being
released to the profit and loss account over the life of the loan

(1x) Deferred revenue relates to the proceeds from the sale of income nghts relating to aerial masts and sites
owned by SWS The income will be credited to the profit and loss account evenly over the life of the
iease
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17 Provision for Liabilities

(a) Environmental obligations 2013 2012
£m £m
At 1 Aprit 2012/2011 08 09
Utiised in year - {c 1)
At 31 March 2013/2012 0.8 08

The environmental proviston relates to costs for the decommissioning of abandoned sites No reimbursement
Is expected The period over which the provision will be utilised cannot be determined thus the provision 1s not
discounted Discounting the provision would not matenally affect its value

(b) Deferred taxation 2013 2012
fm £m
Accelerated capital allowances 378.3 3718
Other timing differences (21.5) (22 2)
Deferred taxation 356 8 3496
2013 2012
Movement in deferred tax provision £m £m
Deferred tax provided at 1 Apnl 2012/2011 349.6 402 9
Prior year adjustment (16) (38)
Deferred tax charge in profit and loss account 243 (20 4)
Effect of corporation tax rate change {15.5) {29 1)
Deferred tax provided at 31 March 2013/2012 356.8 349 6
2013 2012
Deferred tax asset relating to pension deficit Em £m
At 1 April 2012/2011 266 233
Deferred tax charge in profit and loss account 59 49
Deferred tax charged to the statement of total recognised gains and losses 18 104
Impact of rate change
Charge i profit and loss account (0.4) (13)
Charged to the statement of total recogrised gamns and losses (0 5) (09)
At 31 March 2013/2012 21.6 26 6

The total deferred tax asset of £21 6m (2011-12 £26 6m) relating to the pension deficit has been deducted
from the pension deficit and so has not been included in this balance
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18 Grants and contributions

At 1 April 2012

Receivable in year

Released to profit and loss account
At 31 March 2013

These grants and contributions relate to non-infrastructure assets

19 Called up share capital

Equity shares
Authonsed
46,050,000 ordinary shares of £1 each

Allotted and fully paid
56,000 ordinary shares of £1 each

Non-equity shares
Issued

Preference shares

32,607 Class A1 shares of £1 each
32,607 Class A2 shares of £0 01 each
110,000 Class B shares of £1 each

£m

479

13

(2.8)

46 4

2013 2012
£m £m
46.1 46 1
01 01
0.0 00
00 00
01 01

The preference shares are classified as debt in ine with FRS 25 They are disclosed within note 16 at an
amount of £142 6m including share premium of £142 5m  The total statutory company share premium of

£188 8m includes ordinary share premium of £46 3m
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20 Reconciliation of movement in shareholder’s funds

Called up Share Profit and Total
share premium loss
capital account
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnil 2012 01 46 3 7603 806.7
Profit after tax - - 156 9 156.9
Diwidends paid - - (43 2) (43.2)
Actuarnal loss on pension scheme - - (7 3) (7.3)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension asset - - 12 1.2
At 31 March 2013 0.1 46.3 867.9 914.3

The profit and loss reserve includes recognised losses of £93 7m (2011-12 £96 3m) less deferred taxation of
£216m (2011-12 £26 6m) In respect of pension scheme liabilities of the company pension fund

Called up Share Profit and Total
share premium loss
capital account
£m fm £m £m
At 1 Apnil 2011 01 46 3 7530 799 4
Profit after tax - - 799 799
Dividends paid - - 42 1) (42 1)
Actuaral loss on pension scheme - - (40 0) (40 0)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension asset - - 95 95
At 31 March 2012 01 46 3 760 3 806 7
21 {a) Cash flow from operating activities
2013 2012
£m £m
Continuing operations
Operating profit 331.0 2716
Depreciation charge 216.2 206 8
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions {11.4) {0 8)
Amortisation of grants and contributions (2.8) {27)
Decrease in environmental provision - {0 1)
Decrease/(Increase) in stocks 0.4 {0 3)
Increase In debtors {25.8) {(10)
{Decrease)/increase 1n creditors (7.8) 136
Total net cash inflow from operating activities 499.8 487 1
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21 (b) Analysis of net debt

At 31 Cash Flow Cther non- At 31

March cash March

2012 £m changes 2013

£m £m £m

Cash deposits 754 64 5 - 139.9
Cash 754 645 - 139.9
Debt 1ssue costs 44 4 47 (2 8) 46.3
Gilt lock proceeds (see note 16) (57) - 02 {5.5)
Loan to subsidiary - 247 5 - 247 5
Loans due within one year (40 3) (250 0) - {290.3)
Loans due after one year (3,686 6) (34 6) (66 9) (3,788.1)
Finance leases - - {(13) {13)
(3,612 8) 321 (70 8) (3,651 5)

The non-cash movement of £70 8m relates to an increase In debt as a result of indexation plus the
amortisation of loan 1ssue costs, gilt lock proceeds, deferred proceeds and an increase in finance lease
obligations

Loans due within one year relate to loans from group undertakings that are repayable on demand (see note
15)

22 Pensions

The company accounted for pension costs during the year under FRS 17 These disclosures show a net FRS
17 deficit (after deferred tax) of £72 1m (2011-12 defict £69 7m) The deficit has ansen mainly as a resuit of
lower expected future returns on investments and turbulence in the stock market, including low interest rates
The net FRS 17 deficit has increased due to a reduction in the related deferred tax asset, although the
underlying deficit before tax has improved shightly These movements are analysed below

Pension schemes operated
The company principally operates two schemes, details of which are shown below

1  Southern Water Pension Scheme (SWPS), a funded defined benefit scheme, was closed to new
members on 31 December 1998, re-opened 1 July 2003 and closed once more to new entrants on 1
April 2005 This scheme has nine trustee directors The Southern Water Services Executive Pension
Scheme (SWEPS) was also closed to new entrants and merged with the SWPS, on 1 April 2005

The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the company Legal and General and
Blackrock are unit registrars for Southern Water Pension Scheme unit holdings, and appoint custodians
at incividual Pocled Fund level (not Client holding level)

2  Asecond company stakeholder scheme, which 1s a defined contribution scheme, i1s also available to all
employees

Contnbutions made to the defined contribution scheme for the year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to
£10m (2011-12 £0 7m) No contnbutions were outstanding at the year end
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22 Pensions {(continued)

Members of all schemes receive an annual statement of thewr accrued benefits

The latest actuanal valuation of the SWPS was carried out as at 31 March 2010 using the projected unit
method For closed schemes under this method the current service cost will iIncrease as the members of the
schemes approach retrement The assumptions that have the most significant effect on the results of the
valuation are those relating to the rate of return on investments, and the level of inflation, which drives
pension increases n the SWPS

The principal assumptions in the valuation were as follows

2010

SWPS

% pa

Return on investments pre-retirement 72

Return on investments post-retirement 52/525
(pensioner/non-pensioner)

Satary growth 52

Pension increases on the excess over guaranteed 38

minimum pensions (where capped at 5% pa)

The assets of the scheme had a market value of £479 6m at 31 March 2010 This was sufficient to cover 81
per cent of the scheme's benefits

Following a comprehensive review process in 2012-13 the company mplemented significant agreed changes
to the SWPS to improve the long term sustamabihty of the scheme These changes were implemented on 1
April 2013 and :nclude the capping of pensionable pay increases (at the lower of RPl and 2 5 per cent each
year), increasing the minimum rate of employee contributions, and reducing the standard accrual rate from
60ths to 80ths As a result of the agreement of these changes in 2012-13 a curtaiiment gain of £8 Om has
been included within aperating profit for 2012-13

Expected employer and employee contrnibutions to the defined benefit scheme for 2013-14 are £8 9m and

£0 3m respectively under the current Schedule of Contnbutions An actuarnial valuation as at 31 March 2013 1s
currentty underway, and a new Schedule of Contributtons will be agreed as part of this valuation, which could
result in a different level of contnbutions being paid
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22 Pensions (continued)

FRS 17 — assumptions, asset, liability and reserves disclosures

The formal actuanal funding valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2010 and updated to 31 March 2013 by
a qualified independent actuary The major assumptions used by the actuary are setout in the table betow

2013 2012 2011

% pa % pa % pa
Price inflation (RP{) 3.2 30 35
Price inflation (CPI) 2.3 21 26
Rate of increase In salanes (plus an age-related promotional scale) 25 30 30
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (MIS* members only)*** 2.3 21 26
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (Old section* members 3.2 30 35
only)***
Rate of increase of pensions in payment (all other membersy** 31 30 33
Rate of increase for deferred pensions (MiS* members only)*** 23 21 26
Rate of increase for deferred pensions (all other members)*** 3.1 30 35
Discount rate 4.4 48 56
Expected return on assets 4.7 54 69
* MIS refers to the Southern Water Mirror Image Pension Scheme Pensions in payment and deferment

for this section will be indexed in line with the Consumer Pnce Index

> For this section the Trustee will endeavour to meet any indexation of excess pension above the 5 per

cent per annum cap on Increases that apply to other sections of the Scheme
***  In excess of any Guaranteed Mimimum Pension (GMP) element

Assumptions regarding future mortality expenence are set based on advice, published statistics and

expenence For 2012-13, the company has used the post-retrement mortality assumptions based on the
standard SAPS mortality tables together with future Improvements in ine with the medium cohort projections

with a 1 per cent pa underpin, modified to reflect actual experience

2013
years
Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners
Male 22.7
Female 24.6
Longevity at age 65 for fulure pensioners
Male 24.6
Female 26.4

2012
years

219
247

233
262
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22 Pensions {continued)

The assets and habilities in the schemes and the expected rates of return at 31 March 2013 and 31 March

2012 were
Rate of Rate of Value Value
return return at 2013 at 2012
2013 2012 £m £m
Equities 6 8% 7 1% 261.7 268 9
Government bonds 2.8% 31% 128.8 118 8
Non-Government bonds 4.1% 4 6% 178.0 125 1
Cash 3.2% 30% 7.5 69
Total market value of Plan assets 576.0 519 8
Total value of Plan llabihbes {669.7) (616 1)
Accrued deficit in the Plan (93.7) (96 3)
Related deferred tax asset 21.6 231
Deferred tax on current year pension contribution - 35
Net pension liability (721) (69 7}

The equity investments and bonds which are held in plan assets are quoted and are valued at the current bid

price following the adoption of the amendment to FRS 17

Reconciliation of the present value of the scheme liabilities 2013 2012
£m £m
At 1 Apnit 2012/2011 616.1 560 7
Current service cost 65 62
Interest cost 29 2 310
Member contnbutions 03 03
Actuanal loss on liabilities 50.3 395
Benefits paid (23.7) (21 6)
Curtallments (920) -
Scheme liabilities at 31 March 2013/2012 669.7 616 1

Sensitivity analysis of scheme liabilities

The sensitivity of the present value of the scheme habilittes to changes i1n the principle assumptions used 15

set out below

Change In tmpact on
assumption scheme
habilities (%)

Biscount rate +H- 1% -+ 15
Rate of inflabhon* +- 1% +/- 13
Rate of increase in pensions in payment +- 1% +/- 11
Mortalty +- 1yr +f- 2

Impact on
scheme
habilities

(£m)
-+ 100
+- 90
+/- 75
+- 13

- *A change in inflation 15 assumed to be reflected in a change in the assumed rates of deferment revaluation

and pension increase (on pension 1N excess of GMP)
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22 Pensions (continued)

Reconciliation of the fair value of the scheme assets

At 1 April 2012/2011

Expected return on assets

Gam/{loss) on assets

Employer contrnibutions

Member contributions

Benefits paid

Bid value of scheme assets at 31 March 2013/2012

The actual gam on scheme assets was £707m (2012 £33 5m)

Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit are as follows

Employer's current service cost

Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension scheme labilities
Curtallments

Total P&L expense hefore deduction for tax

Analysis of the amounts recogmsed in STRGL

Actuarial return less expected return on pension scheme assets
Experience gain/(loss) ansing on scheme liabilities

Loss on change of assumptions (financial and demographic)
Total loss recognised in STRGL before adjustment for tax

2013 2012
£m £fm
519.8 5006
27.7 340
43.0 (0 5)
8.9 70
0.3 03
{23.7) (21 6)
576.0 519 8
2013 2012
£m £m
6.5 62
(27.7) (34 Q)
29,2 310
(9.0) -
(1.0) 32
2013 2012
£m £m
43.0 (0 5)
1.1 (49
{51.4) (34 6)
{7.3) (40 0)

The cumulative amount of actuarnal losses recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses is

£1396m (2011-12 £132 3m)

Analysis of the movement in the schemes' deficit during the year

Deficit in the scheme at 1 April 2012/2011
Employer's contributions

Employer's current service cost

Cost of curtailments

Other finance expense

Actuanal loss

Deficit in the scheme at end of year

Deferred tax relating to scheme deficit

Deferred tax on current year pension contribution
Net deficit at end of year

2013 2012
£m £m
(96.3) (60 1)
8.9 70
(6.5) 62
9.0 -
(1.5) 30
(7.3) (40 0)
(93.7) (96 3)
21.6 231
- 35
(72.1) 69 7)
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22 Pensions (continued)

History of gains and losses for the year to 31
March 2013 are as follows

a. Experience adjustment on planned assets
Amount (Em)

b Experience adjustment on scheme liabilities
Amount (£m)

c. Total amount recognised in the STRGL
Fair vatue of assets at year end (Em)
Actuanal value of labilities at year end (Em)
Deficit in scheme at year end (£Em)

2013 2012 20M 2010 2009
{43 0) 05 (11 (83 6) 104 3
1.1 49 (6 0) 129 {13 1)
576 0 5198 500 6 480 2 3188
(669.7) (6161) (5607) (5890) (434 5)

{93.7) (96 3)

(601) (108 8)

(115 7)

The assets in the current year and the years ended 31 March 2012, 2011 and 2010 have been valued at bid

value as per FRS 17 amendment Southern Water has taken advantage of an exemption in FRS 17

amendment, not to restate the years prior to 31 March 2009 at bid value

23 Contingent liabilities

Contractors submit claims to the company for the estimated final cost of their works These claims are

reviewed to assess where the hability for the costs rests and the amount that will actually be settled The
expected amount 1s included within capital creditors and a further sum 1s identified as a contingent hability,
representing a proportion of the difference between the contractor's claim and Southern Water's valuation

The company had no contingent habtlities for capital claims at the year end (2011-12 £nil)

24 Financial commitments

As at 31 March 2013, the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating lease

agreements in respect of vehicles and land and buildings for which the payment extends over a number of

years as follows

Expiring within one year
Expinng between two and five years
Expinng after more than five years

Land and Buildings Other
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m

- - - 01

1.3 13 - 01
1.3 13 - 02

Operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account over the lease term

25 Related party transactions and ultimate holding party

The immediate parent undertaking 1s SWS Holdings Limited

The ultimate parent company and ultimate controlling party 1s Greensands Holdings Limited, a company

incorporated in Jersey

The major shareholders in Greensands Holdings Limited as at 31 March 2013 are |IF International SW UK
Investments Limited (advised by JP Morgan Investments Inc ) and The Northern Trust Company
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25 Refated party transactions and ultimate holding party (continued)

Greensands Holdings Limited 1s the only group company to prepare consolidated financial statements, copies
of which may be obtained from the Company Secretary of Greensands Holdings Limited at Southern House,
Yeoman Road, Worthing, BN13 3NX

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 8, ‘Related Party Disclosures’, {revised) in
naot disclosing details of transactions with other companies which are 100 per cent owned on the basis that
the consohdated financial statements in which the company 15 included are publicly availlable
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Independent Auditor’s report to the members of Southern Water Services Ltd

We have audited the financial statements of Southem Water Services Ltd for the year ended 31 March 2013
which comprise the profit and loss account, the statement of total recognised gains and losses, the balance
sheet, the cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 25 The financial reporting framework that has been
apphed in their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an audior's report and for no other purpose To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicablte law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to
the company’s circumstances and have been consistently apphied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements |n addition, we read all the financial and non-financial infformation in the annual report to
identify matenial inconsistencies with the audited financial statements  If we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we conssder the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements
= Give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affars as at 31 March 2013 and of its profit for
the year then ended
= Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice
= Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opiion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financtal
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, In our opInion

= Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

* The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

= Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* We have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

J- S

James Leigh (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, Umnited Kingdom

26 June 2013
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